
School Board of Clay County
Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Date: Apr 03 2025 (6:00 p.m.)

Student Showcase (Argyle Elementary School)

Invocation (Father Mason Wiggins, St. Catherine Catholic Church, Orange Park)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Recognitions and Awards

1. Recognition of Governor DeSantis Black History Month Essay Contest Winner

2. Recognition of Student's Outstanding Citizenship

3. Recognition of National Merit Scholarship Semifinalist Students

4. Recognition of State Thespians

5. Recognition of Band Colorguard, Percussion, and Winds Championships

Presenters

6. Safety and Security Quarterly Report (Q3)

School Showcase (Argyle Elementary School, Mary Dorsch, Principal)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment on Specific Agenda Items)

Discussion Agenda

Human Resources

7. D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

8. D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

9. D3 - Human Resources Special Action C

10. D4 - Human Resources Special Action D

Instruction-Instructional Resources

11. D5 - Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised Adoption of K-5 English Language Arts, K-4 Mathematics
Intervention, and 9-12 Personal Financial Literacy and Money Management

Page 1 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54629
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54670
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54674
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54630
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54632
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54641
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54671
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54639
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54672
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54638
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54633
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54633


2024-2025 K-5 English Language Arts Adoption Packet.pdf

2024-2025 K-4 Mathematics Intervention Adoption Packet.pdf

2024-2025 9-12 Personal Finance and Money Management Adoption Packet.pdf

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

12. C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop on February 25, 2025; Student Hearings and Regular Meeting on March 6,
2025

2025 Feb 25 Workshop.pdf

2025 Mar 6 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2025 Mar 6 Regular Mtg.pdf

Human Resources

13. C2 - Personnel Consent Agenda

PERSONNEL CONSENT AGENDA 3_10_25.pdf

14. C3 - Proposed Supplement Allocations for 2025-2026

2025-2026 Proposed Supplements 3_14_25.pdf

15. C4 - Proclamation #25-13 to Establish May 5-9, 2025, as Teacher Appreciation Week in Clay County, and Tuesday,
May 6, 2025, as Teacher Appreciation Day

Teacher Appreciation Proclamation 2024-2025.pdf

16. C5 - Proclamation #25-14 to Establish April 21-25, 2025, as Administrative Professionals' Week and Wednesday,
April 23, 2025, as Administrative Professionals' Day in Clay County.

Administrative Professionals Proclamation 2024-2025.pdf

Instruction-Academic Services

17. C6 - Elementary Student Out of State Travel

Elementary out of state field trip.pdf

Instruction-Instructional Resources

18. C7 - Request for Review or Reconsideration of Library Materials Appeals

April 2025_Request for Review or Reconsideration of Library Materials Appeals List.pdf

Instruction-K-12 Academic

19. C8 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

April 2025 Overnight Student Travel.pdf

20. C9 - 2025 Proposed Summer Programs Calendar (6th Grade, Jr. High, BLC, ESOL & High School Summer Programs
and VPK, 3rd Grade Summer Camp)

2025 Secondary Summer Program calendar.pdf

VPK & 3rd Grade Summer Reading Camp Calendar.pdf

Instruction-Professional Development

Page 2 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-k-5-english-language-arts-adoption-packet.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-k-4-mathematics-intervention-adoption-packet.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-9-12-personal-finance-and-money-management-adoption-packet.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54634
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54634
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2025-feb-25-workshop.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2025-mar-6-regular-mtg.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54637
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-3_10_25.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54644
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2025-2026-proposed-supplements-3_14_25.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54640
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54640
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/teacher-appreciation-proclamation-2024-2025.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54642
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54642
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/administrative-professionals-proclamation-2024-2025.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54655
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/elementary-out-of-state-field-trip.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54631
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/april-2025_request-for-review-or-reconsideration-of-library-materials-appeals-list.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54663
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/april-2025-overnight-student-travel.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54662
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54662
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2025-secondary-summer-program-calendar.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/vpk-3rd-grade-summer-reading-camp-calendar.pdf


21. C10 - Addition of a component to the Professional Learning Catalog to provide additional professional learning
opportunities for Adult and Community Education teachers.

8-007-408_Adult and Community Education Professional Development Training _2024.pdf

Instruction-Climate and Culture

22. C11 - Proclamation #25-15, National School Nurse Week

Nurses Week Proclamation #25-15.pdf

23. C12 - Proclamation #25-16 Month of the Military Child, Purple Up! Day

2025_month-of-military-child-proclamation.pdf

Business Affairs

24. C13 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2024-2025

04.03.25 - 24-25 Allocation Summary - Google Sheets.pdf

25. C14 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2025-2026

04.03.25 - 25-26 Allocation Summary.pdf

Business Affairs-Accounting

26. C15 - Monthly Financial Reports for February, 2025

February 2025 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

Contracts Signed by Superintendent for 50K to 100K.pdf

February 2025 Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

27. C16 - Budget Amendment Report for February 28, 2025

Feb 2025 Budget Amendment Stmt.pdf

Business Affairs-Property

28. C17 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT MARCH, 2025

DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT APRIL, 2025.pdf

Business Affairs-Purchasing

29. C18 - BID Award

Operations-Facilities

30. C19 - Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. Right-of-Way Easement at Oakleaf Junior High School

Easement at Oakleaf Junior High Contract Review.pdf

31. C20 - Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. Right-of-Way Easement at Lake Asbury Junior High School

Easement at Lake Asbury Junior High Contract Review.pdf

32. C21 - Substantial and Final Completion of Doctors Inlet Elementary School Security Lighting Repair/Replacement

Certificate of Substantial & Final Completion for DIS Security Lighting Repair Replacement

33. C22 - Prequalification of Contractors

Page 3 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54669
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54669
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/8-007-408_adult-and-community-education-professional-development-training-_2024.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54636
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/nurses-week-proclamation-25-15.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54643
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2025_month-of-military-child-proclamation.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54664
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/040325-24-25-allocation-summary-google-sheets.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54665
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/040325-25-26-allocation-summary.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54661
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/february-2025-monthly-board-property-report.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contracts-signed-by-superintendent-for-50k-to-100k_1.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/february-2025-monthly-board-financial-report.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54667
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/feb-2025-budget-amendment-stmt.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54635
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-of-certain-items-report-april-2025.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54660
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54653
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/easement-at-oakleaf-junior-high-contract-review.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54654
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/easement-at-lake-asbury-junior-high-contract-review_1.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54656
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-substantial-final-completion-for-dis-security-lighting-repair-replacement.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54657


Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 4.3.25

34. C23 - Change Order #2 (Direct Purchasing) for Lakeside Elementary School Kitchen Renovation

Change Order #2 (Direct Purchasing) for LSE Kitchen Cafeteria Renovation

35. C24 - Change Order #3 for Lakeside Elementary School Kitchen Renovation

Change Order #3 for LSE Kitchen Renovation

Adoption of Consent Agenda

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment on Non-Specific Agenda Items)

CCEA Update  (Victoria Kidwell)

CESPA Update  (Lonnie Roberts)

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

School Board Attorney Remarks

School Board Member Remarks

Adjournment

Page 4 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-4325.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54658
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-2-direct-purchasing-for-lse-kitchen-cafeteria-renovation.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54659
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-3-for-lse-kitchen-renovation.pdf


School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of Governor DeSantis Black History Month Essay Contest Winner

Description
The "Governor DeSantis Black History Month Essay Contest" is a competition held annually in Florida.  Students in grades 4-12
may submit essays focused on the contributions of African Americans to Florida's history, with the winners being recognized gy
Governor DeSantis and the Florida Department of Education.
Kei'Ani McQuown, 5th Grade, Tynes Elementary School won a 2-year Florida PrePaid College Scholarship.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Recognition only.

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 5 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of Student's Outstanding Citizenship

Description
Recognition of Nevin Luna, 8th grade, Oakleaf Junior High School, for displaying extraordinary courage and compassion by
assisting a fellow community member who required urgent medical assistance.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent, david.broskie@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 6 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of National Merit Scholarship Semifinalist Students

Description
To become a National Merit Scholarship semifinalist, students must score in the top 1% of their state on the PSAT/NMSQT. 
National Merit Scholarship Semifinalists are as follows:

Tristan Duke (KHH)-
Ezra Garrison (FIH)-
Ramon Morales (RHS)-
Nyhla Jones (OHS)-
Noe Navarro (OHS)-

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Recognition only.

Contact
Treasure Pickett, Chief of Secondary Education, treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 7 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of State Thespians

Description

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
Christopher Gugel, Fine Arts Curriculum Specialist, christopher.gugel@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 8 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of Band Colorguard, Percussion, and Winds Championships

Description

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
Christopher Gugel, Fine Arts Curriculum Specialist, christopher,gugel@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 9 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Safety and Security Quarterly Report (Q3)

Description
Clay County District Schools, Safety and Security team, must present the FLDOE Office of Safe School Audit data from their
Quarter Three (January - March) visits to the general public and school board.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
The Safety & Security Department has previously presented Quarter One data at the November 7, 2024 school board meeting.

Expected Outcomes
During a School Board Meeting on March 25, 2025 (closed to the public), Matthew Boyack, Director of Safety & Security, will
present the specific findings from the Office of Safe Schools Quarter Three Audits.
During a Regular School Board Meeting on April 3, 2024, Matthew Boyack, Director of Safety & Security, will present to the
public and board members a broad overview of the Q3 Audit data.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Presentation only.

Contact
Matthew Boyack, Director of Safety and Security, 904-336-6851, matthew.boyack@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 10 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 11 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 12 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D3 - Human Resources Special Action C

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 13 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D4 - Human Resources Special Action D

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 14 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D5 - Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised Adoption of K-5 English Language Arts, K-4 Mathematics Intervention, and 9-12
Personal Financial Literacy and Money Management

Description
On January 3rd, the Pre-selection Adoption Committees which included teacher representatives from each impacted subject area
and parents vetted materials for the considered courses using a comprehensive rubric that aligned curricula to materials for K-5
English Language Arts (ELA), K-4 Mathematics Intervention, and 9-12 Personal Finance and Money Management (PFIN). The
committees thoroughly reviewed all available curriculum options from the state adoption list. The teams worked to apply
rigorous alignment criteria using evaluation tools provided by the Instructional Resources Department and District Curriculum
Specialists to each selection to determine the top products that would best meet the needs of the students of Clay County. 
To finalize the vetting process, all impacted teachers were asked to provide feedback about the top choices and the ability of each
to meet the needs of their students.  All feedback from specialists, coaches, teachers, and parents were then provided to the
District Committee for their review and recommendation.
The top products selected for each subject are posted on the Instructional Resources page of the District’s website. The public is
encouraged to view the products and express their individual comments and/or concerns about each one. 
Florida State Statute 1006.283 requires an open, noticed school board hearing to receive public comment on the recommended
instructional materials. The publication of  notice allows CCDS to meet this requirement

Gap Analysis
K-5 English Language Arts materials were previously adopted in 2020. Section (s.) 1001.215, Florida Statutes (F.S.), Just Read,
Florida! Office, Requires the primary instructional strategy for teaching word reading to be phonics instruction for decoding and
encoding. Identified reading instructional and intervention programs for foundational skills may not include strategies that
employ the three-cueing system model of reading or visual memory as a basis for teaching word reading. Such programs may
include visual information and strategies that improve background and experiential knowledge, add context and increase oral
language and vocabulary to support comprehension, but may not be used to teach word reading. As a result of these provisions,
the Commissioner has found that the K-12 ELA adoption cycle requires more frequent revisions than envisioned in the 2020-
2021 adoption cycle. House Bill 7039 from the 2023 legislative session requires a state examined and approved list of
mathematics intervention programs, curricula and high-quality supplemental materials that may be used to improve a student’s
mathematics deficiencies. Senate Bill 1054 from 2022 legislative session amended Sections (s.) 1003.41 and 1003.4282, Florida
Statutes (F.S.) requiring that students entering grade 9 in the 2023-2024 school year and thereafter earn one-half credit in
personal financial literacy and money management. As such, the Department determined that requirements for courses that meet
this statute are not reflected in currently adopted materials from the 2022-2023 social studies instructional materials adoption.

Previous Outcomes
Statute requires a district to adopt within five years of the State’s adoption year.  F.S. 1006.283 Requires a public hearing to be
posted in a publication 20 calendar days prior to the event in order for the public to be made fully aware of the District’s
intentions.

Expected Outcomes
These materials would provide the teachers of Clay County current, quality, and aligned materials to enable them the ability to
deliver and plan engaging lessons, and provide students with the resources to maximize learning and increase student outcomes.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal: 1: Develop Great Educators and Leaders
Strategy: 1.1: Develop a high quality and aligned instructional system.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the School Board approve the adoption of K-5 English Language Arts, K-4 Mathematics Intervention,
and 9-12 Personal Financial Literacy and Money Management materials.  

Page 15 of 366

DRAFT



Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904 roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Estimated cost ~ $ 5,600,000 in materials funding for K-5 ELA and 9-12 PFIN.

Review Comments

Attachments

2024-2025 K-5 English Language Arts Adoption Packet.pdf

2024-2025 K-4 Mathematics Intervention Adoption Packet.pdf

2024-2025 9-12 Personal Finance and Money Management Adoption Packet.pdf

Page 16 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-k-5-english-language-arts-adoption-packet.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-k-4-mathematics-intervention-adoption-packet.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-2025-9-12-personal-finance-and-money-management-adoption-packet.pdf


Page 17 of 366

DRAFT



Page 18 of 366

DRAFT



Page 19 of 366

DRAFT



Page 20 of 366

DRAFT



Page 21 of 366

DRAFT



Page 22 of 366

DRAFT



Page 23 of 366

DRAFT



Page 24 of 366

DRAFT



Page 25 of 366

DRAFT



Page 26 of 366

DRAFT



Page 27 of 366

DRAFT



Page 28 of 366

DRAFT



Page 29 of 366

DRAFT



Page 30 of 366

DRAFT



Page 31 of 366

DRAFT



Page 32 of 366

DRAFT



Page 33 of 366

DRAFT



Page 34 of 366

DRAFT



Page 35 of 366

DRAFT



Page 36 of 366

DRAFT



Page 37 of 366

DRAFT



Page 38 of 366

DRAFT



Page 39 of 366

DRAFT



Page 40 of 366

DRAFT



Page 41 of 366

DRAFT



Page 42 of 366

DRAFT



Page 43 of 366

DRAFT



Page 44 of 366

DRAFT



Page 45 of 366

DRAFT



Page 46 of 366

DRAFT



Page 47 of 366

DRAFT



Page 48 of 366

DRAFT



Page 49 of 366

DRAFT



Page 50 of 366

DRAFT



Page 51 of 366

DRAFT



Page 52 of 366

DRAFT



Page 53 of 366

DRAFT



Page 54 of 366

DRAFT



Page 55 of 366

DRAFT



Page 56 of 366

DRAFT



Page 57 of 366

DRAFT



Page 58 of 366

DRAFT



Page 59 of 366

DRAFT



Page 60 of 366

DRAFT



Page 61 of 366

DRAFT



Page 62 of 366

DRAFT



Page 63 of 366

DRAFT



Page 64 of 366

DRAFT



Page 65 of 366

DRAFT



Page 66 of 366

DRAFT



Page 67 of 366

DRAFT



Page 68 of 366

DRAFT



Page 69 of 366

DRAFT



Page 70 of 366

DRAFT



Page 71 of 366

DRAFT



Page 72 of 366

DRAFT



Page 73 of 366

DRAFT



Page 74 of 366

DRAFT



Page 75 of 366

DRAFT



Page 76 of 366

DRAFT



Page 77 of 366

DRAFT



Page 78 of 366

DRAFT



Page 79 of 366

DRAFT



Page 80 of 366

DRAFT



Page 81 of 366

DRAFT



Page 82 of 366

DRAFT



Page 83 of 366

DRAFT



Page 84 of 366

DRAFT



Page 85 of 366

DRAFT



Page 86 of 366

DRAFT



Page 87 of 366

DRAFT



Page 88 of 366

DRAFT



Page 89 of 366

DRAFT



Page 90 of 366

DRAFT



Page 91 of 366

DRAFT



Page 92 of 366

DRAFT



Page 93 of 366

DRAFT



Page 94 of 366

DRAFT



Page 95 of 366

DRAFT



Page 96 of 366

DRAFT



Page 97 of 366

DRAFT



Page 98 of 366

DRAFT



Page 99 of 366

DRAFT



Page 100 of 366

DRAFT



Page 101 of 366

DRAFT



Page 102 of 366

DRAFT



Page 103 of 366

DRAFT



Page 104 of 366

DRAFT



Page 105 of 366

DRAFT



Page 106 of 366

DRAFT



Page 107 of 366

DRAFT



Page 108 of 366

DRAFT



Page 109 of 366

DRAFT



Page 110 of 366

DRAFT



Page 111 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop on February 25, 2025; Student Hearings and Regular Meeting on March 6, 2025

Description
Florida Statute 1001.42(1) requires the superintendent, as secretary, to keep such minutes and records as are necessary to set
forth clearly all actions and proceedings of the school board.  The minutes of each meeting shall be reviewed, corrected if
necessary, and approved at the next regular meeting; provided that this action may be taken at an intervening special meeting if
the board desires.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Approve minutes as submitted.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools, david.broskie@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2025 Feb 25 Workshop.pdf

2025 Mar 6 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2025 Mar 6 Regular Mtg.pdf

Page 112 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2025-feb-25-workshop.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2025-mar-6-regular-mtg.pdf


Date: Feb 25 2025 (9:05 a.m.)

School Board of Clay County

District Multi-Purpose Center, Corner of Walnut Street and Gratio Place, Green Cove Springs, Fl 32043

February 25, 2025 - School Board Workshop

Invocation  (Erin Skkipper)

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper, District 1; Robert Alvero, District 2; Beth Clark, District 3, Michele Hanson, District 4; Ashley
Gilhousen, District 5; and Superintendent David S. Broskie)

Workshop Items

1. Review of Policy Development - Students

Minutes:

Lisa Whitman and Tom Wittmer, Esq. Neola, reviewed the draft proposed policies - 5000 (students).

Discussion on draft proposed policies included:

5136 Wireless Communication Devices - The board engaged in a comprehensive discussion of students' cell phone use
including after-school use, phones on silent vs. powered off, and lunchtime use for high school students.  There was board
consensus to add Neola option A back into the WCD policy, requiring that phones be powered off and put away with the
exception of silencing phones during afterschool activities, on buses, or during lunch (lunch pertains to high school students
only).  Mrs. Hanson noted the support received from teachers re keeping cell phones out of the classrooms.
5200 Attendance - Mrs. Hanson requested clarification on the omission of administrative procedures proposed in Neola
template, stating that teachers are concerned with varying procedures and their inability to track 125+ students on a daily
basis.  Mrs. Gilhousen noted the robocalls generated to assist with attendance issues.  Mr. Broskie advised the proposed
procedures were not used because there is a 3-tier administrative procedure that the district and school board attorney have
developed together to address truancy.  These procedures will be outlined in detail in the Administrative Procedures section
when crafted.
5230 Late Arrival and Early Dismissal - Mr. Broskie clarified that certain language was stricken as the district does not become
involved in custody conflicts.
5320 Immunization and Health Examination - Mrs. Skipper advised that the state of Florida allows religious and philosophical
exemptions for immunization requirements.  Language will be added to this proposed policy to clarify that the State of Florida
may provide the exemption and CCDS will accept the official Department of Health Forms provided.  This change will also be
included in the enrollment policy.
5330 Use of Medications - brief notation of a change of practice, related to statute, that allows students to carry headache
medication.
5420 Reporting Student Progress - Mrs. Hanson noted a need to make clarifications re how student progress is reported to
parents.  Mr. Broskie noted that information is contained in the Student Progression Plan.  Mrs. Hanson would like this
information made more accessible and less complicated for parents.  Mr. Broskie advised that teachers should be reporting
student deficiencies along the way and there is a procedure in place for engaging parents in this process.  Mrs. Hanson
proposed a future forum with teachers and parents to help determine the right direction for implementing a consistent standard
across the board.
5511 Dress and Grooming - The helpfulness of a visual addressing appropriate dress would be posted in schools was
suggested.  Discussion also included how to define "inappropriate" and how dress code violations are addressed.  Re
ceremonies and extra-curricular events, coaches, principals, and sponsors can provide attire guidelines.
5512 Smoking and Tobacco - Mrs. Hanson stressed the need for consistent, locktight procedures and inquired if our law
partners, Orange Park Police Department, Green Cove Springs Police Department, and Clay County Sheriffs Office are all
apprised of the same procedures.  Mr. Broskie advised the district can coordinate with all law enforcement partners to ensure
they have the procedures.
5515 Use of Motor Vehicles - Mr. Broskie directed the addition of a statement that the board will not be responsible for motor
vehicles that are lost, stolen or damaged, or subject to search and seizure as outlined in policy.
5610.05 Participation in Extra-Curricular Activities - Mrs. Hanson requested clarification re the removal of language that
required athletes follow the athletic code of conduct.  Mr. Broskie advised these procedures are covered under anotherPage 113 of 366

DRAFT



section.  Mrs. Hanson and Mr. Alvero voiced support for an athletic code of conduct.  Mr. Broskie indicated a statement could
be added.
5722 School-Sponsored Publications and Productions - Mrs. Skipper requested and received confirmation that the fine arts
coordinator was consulted re this proposed policy.
5771 Search and Seizure - Mrs. Hanson requested and received confirmation that this policy was approved by the school
board attorneys.
5780 Student/Parent Rights - Mrs. Gilhousen suggested language be added under "reproductive health and disease
education" to reflect and emphasize the current abstinence-based, family-based policy in place.  Mr. Broskie advised our
current policy may be reflected in the proposed policy.  There may be future discussion on curriculum related to this matter.
5860 Safety Patrol - The board reached consensus to delete this policy entirely.  Mr. Wittmer confirmed the proposed policy is
not required.

Mrs. Clark indicated a desire for teacher consistency re the policy relating to bullying.

2. Review Draft Agenda for Regular School Board Meeting on March 6, 2025

March-6-2025-regular-school-board-meeting_agenda_packet.pdf

2025-26 Staffing Presentation.pdf

Minutes:

Recognitions and Presentations:

Recognition of Students Receiving Gold Key Awards in Scholastic Art Contest - no discussion;
Athletics Recognition of State Champions - no discussion;
EDFIRST Citizens Advisory Committee Update - no discussion;

Discussion Agenda:

D1 Human Resources Special Action A - no discussion;
D2 Human Resources Special Action B - no discussion;
D3 Human Resources Special Action C - no discussion;
D4 Human Resources Special Action D - no discussion;
D5 2025-26 Staffing Plan Pending Board Approval -

Superintendent Broskie reviewed the attached presentation and staffing package presented to board members under the guiding
principles of stability, fiscal conservativeness, flexibility, and transparency which incorporates student projections.  An overall summary
of proposed allocation changes at all schools and district offices was provided, including the financial impact of recommended
allocations.  These proposed allocations included the school and financial impact resulting from including 6th grade movement to
Lake Asbury Junior and Oakleaf Junior and increased enrollment of English Language Learners.

Mrs. Hanson noted that the vertical articulation will create stronger reading for the 6th graders transitioning to academic services in
junior high school.

Mrs. Skipper requested to know the status of funding sources for previously discussed safety and security issues.  Matt Boyack,
Director of Safety and Security, indicated he has submitted the board's shade meeting requests to the state.  Mr. Broskie noted there
may be some language revisions forthcoming that will be helpful to support security initiatives.

Mrs. Hanson inquired re the increased Gifted additions for the 2025/2026 school year and Dr. Melanie Sanders, Director of
Exceptional Student Education, indicated there is an increased Gifted population at certain schools.

Consent Agenda:

C1 Minutes of School Board Workshop on January 28, 2025; Student Hearings and Regular Meeting on February 6, 2025 - no
discussion;
C2 Proclamation #25-11, Clay County Agricultural Fair - no discussion;
C3 Approve the Nomination for the Internal Audit Committee Members (Information Only) - no discussion;
C4 Personnel Consent Agenda - no discussion;
C5 Appointment of Clay County School Board's CCEA and CESPA Bargaining Team Members for 2025-2026 - no discussion;
C6 Elementary Student Out of State Travel - no discussion;
C7 MOU between Clay County District Schools and CareerSource Northeast Florida - no discussion;
C8 K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel - no discussion;
C9 Proposed PACE Employee and Student Calendar for 2025-2026 School Year - no discussion;
C10 Proclamation of School Social Work Week March 2-8, 2025 - no discussion;
C11 Proposed Allocation Changes for 2024-2025 - no discussion;
C12 Proposed Allocation Changes for 2025-2026 - no discussion;
C13 Monthly Financial Reports for January, 2025 - no discussion;
C14 Budget Amendment Report for January 31, 2025 - no discussion;
C15 Approval of the 2025-2026 Payroll Calendars - no discussion;
C16 Deletion of Certain Items Report February 2025 - no discussion;
C17 BID Renewals - no discussion; Page 114 of 366

DRAFT



C18 RFP Award - no discussion;
C19 Contract Renewal - County-Wide Architectural Services up to $4 Million Contract Award - brief discussion to clarify this is
a BID for whenever the need to move or relocate a portable arises; 
C20 BID Award - no discussion;
C21 Contract Award for Orange Park High School Gym/Locker Room Renovations - no discussion;
C22 Substantial and Final Completion of Orange Park High School Safety & Security; Emergency Communications - no
discussion;
C23 Substantial and Final Completion of Keystone Heights High School Visitor Concession Stand - no discussion;
C24 Tynes Elementary School HVAC Repair/Replacement Contract Award - no discussion;
C25 Clay High School Roof Repair/Replacement Contract Award - no discussion;
C26 Wilkinson Junior High School Control Access Contract Award - no discussion;
C27 Green Cove Springs Junior High School CTE Lab Upgrades Contract Award - no discussion;
C28 Orange Park High School Restroom Renovation Contract Award - no discussion;
C29 Substantial and Final Completion of Ridgeview High School Safety & Security; Emergency Communications - no
discussion;
C30 Substantial and Final Completion of Fleming Island High School Safety & Security; Emergency Communications - no
discussion;
C31 Substantial and Final Completion of Middleburg High School Safety & Security; Emergency Communications - no
discussion;
C32 Substantial and Final Completion of Oakleaf Junior High School Safety & Security; Emergency Communications - no
discussion;
C33 Substantial and Final Completion of Oakleaf High School Safety & Security; Emergency Communications - no discussion;
C34 Substantial and Final Completion of Keystone Heights High School Safety & Security; Emergency Communications - no
discussion;
C35 Substantial and Final Completion of Clay High School Safety & Security; Emergency Communications; - no discussion;
C36 Contract Award for Orange Park High School Athletic Field Lighting - no discussion;
C37 Contract Award for Keystone heights Jr/Sr High School Security Lighting Repair/Replacement - no discussion;
C38 Plantation Oaks Elementary School Fire alarm Repair/Replacement Contract Award - no discussion;
C39 Tynes Elementary School Fire Alarm Repair/Replacement Contract Award - no discussion;
C40 Oakleaf Village Elementary School Fire Alarm Repair/Replacement Contract Award - no discussion;
C41 Orange Park Junior High School Restroom Renovation Contract Award - no discussion;
C42 RideOut Elementary School Classroom Addition Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Contract - no discussion;
C43 Prequalification of Contractors - no discussion;
C44 Change Order #2 (Direct Purchasing) for Lake Asbury Junior High School Classroom addition - no discussion.

Questions from the Audience  (None)

Superintendent Comments

3. Superintendent Comments

Minutes:

Superintendent Broskie noted that there were 2,074 cell phone referrals for the 23-24 school year.  He also noted that he will provide
information re fingerprinting for board members.

 

School Board Attorney Comments  (None)

School Board Comments

4. School Board Member Comments

Minutes:

At the opening of the meeting, prior to addressing the agenda items, Mrs. Skipper stated that she wanted to make clear that board
members are permitted on all school campuses.  Per state statute, it is not necessary to make an appointment nor have an escort,
although mindfulness of testing days and going into classrooms at certain times should be considered.  Board members are free to
grant the courtesy of contacting the school in advance but not required to do so.  Additionally, board members' badges should be able
to access every door.  Additional discussion included obtaining a Level 2 clearance for board members and Brenda Troutman,
Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources, will research that and schedule any screenings that are needed.

Mrs. Hanson has been visiting schools and engaging in discussion with teachers.  She recommends an outside survey of the
teachers to determine what is really important to them.  She want to foster greater connection to the teachers.  Mrs. Gilhousen
indicated that one option could be a School Board teachers' survey, with the information being sent to the school board chair, who can
report the information to the board at a workshop.  Mrs. Gilhousen expressed concern with teacher participation and Mrs. Skipper
indicated the survey could be encouraged through the board's upcoming newsletter.  

Mr. Alvero would like to engage with parents and obtain their input re the cell phone policy.  Mrs. Skipper noted forums held previously
and indicated no objection to holding meetings again on that issue.  Mrs. Gilhousen suggested adding cell phone input to the existingPage 115 of 366

DRAFT



parent survey.  Mrs. Clark noted the importance of timing in surveys and indicated perhaps one or two per year would be sufficient
unless a particular topic would warrant an additional survey.

Mrs. Skipper commended the Operations Department on their work to support all schools, particularly the older structures.

Mrs. Clark noted the need to keep the public up to date and informed.  She is attending a concert this evening at Oakleaf High
School.

Mrs. Hanson noted that the millage would be on the 2026 ballot and that the jobs of the board members include making stakeholders
aware of what will be done with that money.  She stressed the need to provide clear ballot language to provide the public with the
information relating to those funds.  Mr. Broskie advised the attorneys will be the ones creating the resolution that will move the
initiative forward.  The board will have input and vote on the proposed resolution.  The public also needs to be aware of costs related
to the hardening of schools related to safety and security.  Mrs. Gilhousen indicated it would be important for the board to have a
workshop to address what funding and services would look like without that money.

Adjournment  (12:13 p.m.)

Page 116 of 366

DRAFT



Date: Mar 06 2025 (6:00 p.m.)

School Board of Clay County

Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL 32003

March 6, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Student Showcase  (Spring Park Elementary, Kaitlynn Tobias, Music Teacher)

Invocation  (Ashley Gilhousen)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper, District 1; Robert Alvero, District 2, Beth Clark, District 3; Michele Hanson, District 4; Ashley
Gilhousen, District 5; Superintendent David Broskie)

Recognitions and Awards

1. Recognition of Students Receiving Gold Key Awards in Scholastic Art Contest

Scholastic Gold Key Winners SB Recognition.pdf

Minutes:

Chris Gugel, Fine Arts Curriculum Specialist, recognized four students receiving the Gold Key Awards in this year's Scholastic Art
Contest as follows:

Katie Moffitt, Lakeside Junior High
Hailey Nalepa, Lake Asbury Junior High
Jaden Poole, Fleming Island High
Allison Tomkins, Lakeside Junior High

2. Athletics Recognition of State Champions

March Athletics Recognition- School Board Meeting 3_6_25.pdf

Minutes:

Jay Stilianou, Coordinator of District Athletics, recognized the following State Champions:

Middleburg - 2A Girls Weightlifting Traditional State Champions - Rhiannon Weiskopf, Coach, and Assistant Coaches Ben
Traywick, Chase Weiskopf

Ash Piniero
Trinity Woodley
Kinzy Alexander
Juliana White
Emily Herren
Reilly Herren
KK Hagan
Caylee Johnson
Madison Underwood
Kerra Clarida
Lilly Williams
Ava Clinkscale

Fleming Island - 2A Girls Weightlifting Olympic State Champions - Sean Coultis, Head Coach, and Leah Anderson, Assistant Coach

Kyla Marshall Page 117 of 366

DRAFT



Bradi Johnson
Haley Elkins
Kathryn Ward
Lily O'Steen
Juliana Sosa
Peyton Coultis
Layla DeCristofaro

2025 Girls Weightlifting Individual State Champions:

Bradi Johnson (FIH) - Traditional and Olympic State Champ
Emma Heck (CHS) - Traditional and Olympic State Champ (4x) and State Record in Snatch

Clay High Cheer - Class 1A Medium Co-Ed - Daniel Richardson and Lori Davis, Coaches

Amiyah Pena
Ashlyn Miles
Bailey Colvard
Carleigh Kierbow
Chloe Whitmarsh
Emily Winkler
Jordan Stacy
Kalyn Mitchell
Kylie Horne
Madison Garza
Morgan McMinn
Noah Johnson
Otis Reynolds
Saige Knapp
Sophia Hanson
Taylor Ledford
Tyler Labelle
Zayden Merry

 

Presenters

3. EDFIRST Citizens Advisory Committee Update

ED.F.I.R.S.T CAC Validation Presentation ('24) 3-6-2025.pdf

Minutes:

Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent of Operations, provided the attached visual presentation of the Education Facility Infractructure
Restricted Sales Tax (EdFIRST) timeline, financial revenue report, EdFIRST projects, and the Citizens Advisory Committee validation
report.  Glen Stroman, Citizen Advisory Council Committee Vice Chair, provided an overview of the Citizens Advisory Committee and
validated the reported findings.

School Showcase  (Spring Park Elementary, Principal Tiffany Outman)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

4. Public Comment

Minutes:

There were no public speakers addressing specific agenda items.

Public speakers addressing non-specific items (heard following the adoption of the consent agenda):

Liz Crane 
Lynda Lyons 
Sylvia McCranie 
James Youell 
Judith Chapple 
Shelly Hughes
Sheila Torres 
Chanda Holsley 
Bruce Friedman 

Page 118 of 366

DRAFT



Discussion Agenda

Human Resources

5. D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

Special Action A - 3_6_25.pdf (Confidential)

Motion
Motion to Approve Human Resources Special Action A

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Michele Hanson
Second: Ashley Gilhousen
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Aye
Erin Skipper - Aye
Robert Alvero - Aye

6. D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

Special Action B - March 6, 2025.pdf (Confidential)

Motion
Motion to Approve Human Resources Special Action B

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Ashley Gilhousen
Second: Beth Clark
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Aye
Erin Skipper - Aye
Robert Alvero - Aye

7. D3 - Human Resources Special Action C

Minutes:

There was no Human Resources Special Action C.

8. D4 - Human Resources Special Action D

Minutes:

There was no Human Resources Special Action D.

Business Affairs

9. D5 - 2025-2026 Staffing Package Pending Board Approval

2025-26 Staffing Plan Pending Board Approval 03-06-25.pdf

Motion
Motion to Approve 2025-2026 Staffing Package

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Ashley Gilhousen
Second: Robert Alvero
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Page 119 of 366

DRAFT



Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Aye
Erin Skipper - Aye
Robert Alvero - Aye

Business Affairs-Purchasing

10. D6 - RFP Award

250133 Service Agreement for RFP 24-MA-333 Athletic Field Maintenance Services_Agrow Pro LLC.pdf

250133 Service Agreement for RFP 24-MA-333 Athletic Field Maintenance Services_Rotolo Consult Inc.pdf

Executed 250133 Agrow Pro.pdf

Executed 250133 Rotolo.pdf

Minutes:

Ashley Gilhousen, School Board Member, District 5, provided CE Form 8A Memorandum of voting Conflict for State Officers and
recused herself from voting on this item.

Motion
Motion to Approve RFP Award

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Michele Hanson
Second: Beth Clark
Ashley Gilhousen - Abstain
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Aye
Erin Skipper - Aye
Robert Alvero - Aye

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

11. C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop on January 28, 2025; Student Hearings and Regular Meeting on February 6, 2025

2025 Jan 28 Workshop.pdf

2025 Feb 6 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2025 Feb 6 Regular Mtg.pdf

12. C2 - Proclamation #25-11, Clay County Agricultural Fair

Proclamation 25-11 2025 Clay County Fair.pdf

School Board Member

13. C3 - Approve the Nomination for the Internal Audit Committee Members (Information Only)

Human Resources

14. C4 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Personnel Consent Agenda 3.4.25 (1).pdf

15. C5 - Appointment of Clay County School Board's CCEA and CESPA Bargaining Team Members for 2025-2026

2025-2026 District Bargaining Team Members.pdf

Instruction-Academic Services

16. C6 - Elementary Student Out of State Travel

Page 120 of 366

DRAFT



Elem out of state travel.pdf

Instruction-Adult Education

17. C7 - MOU between Clay County District Schools and CareerSource Northeast Florida

250132 Career Source MOU.pdf

Executed MOU_CCDS_CareerSource NE FL.pdf

Instruction-K-12 Academic

18. C8 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

March 2025 Student Travel.pdf

Instruction-Climate and Culture

19. C9 - Proclamation of School Social Work Week MARCH 2-8, 2025

2025 School Social Work Week Proclamation.pdf

Business Affairs

20. C10 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2024-2025

03.06.25 - 24-25 Allocation Summary.pdf

21. C11 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2025-2026

03.06.25 - 25-26 Allocation Summary - 2024-25.pdf

Business Affairs-Accounting

22. C12 - Monthly Financial Reports for January, 2025

January 2025 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

Contracts Signed by Superintendent for 50K to 100K.pdf

January 2025 Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

23. C13 - Budget Amendment Report for January 31, 2025

Jan 2025 Budget Amendment Stmt.pdf

Business Affairs-Payroll

24. C14 - Approval of the 2025-2026 Payroll Calendars

2025-2026 Master Payroll Calendar_Pending March 2025 Board Approval.pdf

2025-2026 Payroll Employee Work Days_Pending March 2025 Board Approval.pdf

2025-2026 Work Datess - 9 month Employees_Pending March 2025 Board Approval.pdf

2025-2026 Work Datess - 10 month Employees_Pending March 2025 Board Approval.pdf

2025-2026 Work Datess - 11 month Employees_Pending March 2025 Board Approval.pdf

2025-2026 Work Datess - 12 month Employees_Pending March 2025 Board Approval.pdf

Business Affairs-Property

25. C15 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT FEBRUARY, 2025

DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT FEBRUARY, 2025.pdf

Business Affairs-Purchasing

26. C16 - BID Renewals

27. C17 - Contract Renewal - County-Wide Architectural Services up to $4 Million Contract Award

28. C18 - BID Award

Operations-Facilities
Page 121 of 366

DRAFT



29. C19 - Contract Award for Orange Park High School Gym/Locker Room Renovations

Orange Park Gym Final.pdf

30. C20 - Substantial and Final Completion of Orange Park High School Safety & Security: Emergency Communications

OPH Emergency Communications Certificate of Substantial and Final Completion

31. C21 - Substantial and Final Completion of Keystone Heights High School Visitor Concession Stand

KHS Visitor Concession Stand Certificate of Substantial and Final Completion

32. C22 - Tynes Elementary School HVAC Repair/Replacement Contract Award

TES HVAC Contract

33. C23 - Clay High School Roof Repair/Replacement Contract Award

Contract for CHS Roof Repair Replacement

34. C24 - Wilkinson Junior High School Control Access Contract Award

WJH Control Access Contract

35. C25 - Green Cove Springs Junior High School CTE Lab Upgrades Contract Award

Contract for GCJ CTE Lab Upgrades

36. C26 - Orange Park High School Restroom Renovation Contract Award

OPH Restroom Renovation Contract

37. C27 - Substantial and Final Completion of Ridgeview High School Safety & Security: Emergency Communications

RHS Emergency Communications Certificate of Substantial & Final Completion

38. C28 - Substantial and Final Completion of Fleming Island High School Safety & Security: Emergency Communications

FIH Emergency Communications Certificate of Substantial & Final Completion.pdf

39. C29 - Substantial and Final Completion of Middleburg High School Safety & Security: Emergency Communications

MHS Emergency Communications Certificate of Substantial & Final Completion

40. C30 - Substantial and Final Completion of Oakleaf Junior High School Safety & Security: Emergency Communications

OJH Emergency Communications Certificate of Substantial & Final Completion

41. C31 - Substantial and Final Completion of Oakleaf High School Safety & Security: Emergency Communications

OHS Emergency Communications Certificate of Substantial & Final Completion

42. C32 - Substantial and Final Completion of Keystone Heights High School Safety & Security: Emergency Communications

KHS Emergency Communications Certificate of Substantial & Final Completion.

43. C33 - Substantial and Final Completion of Clay High School Safety & Security: Emergency Communications

CHS Emergency Communications Certificate of Substantial & Final Completion

44. C34 - Contract Award for Orange Park High School Athletic Field Lighting

Orange Park Athletic Field Lighting Final.pdf

45. C35 - Contract Award for Keystone Heights Jr/Sr High School Security Lighting Repair/Replacement

Keystone Heights Jr Sr High Security Lighting Repair.pdf

46. C36 - Plantation Oaks Elementary School Fire Alarm Repair/Replacement Contract Award

Contract for POE Fire Alarm Repair Replacement

47. C37 - Tynes Elementary School Fire Alarm Repair/Replacement Contract Award

Contract for TES Fire Alarm Repair Replacement

48. C38 - Oakleaf Village Elementary School Fire Alarm Repair/Replacement Contract Award
Page 122 of 366

DRAFT



Contract for OVE Fire Alarm Repair Replacement

49. C39 - Orange Park Junior High School Restroom Renovation Contract Award

Contract for OPJ Restroom Renovation

50. C40 - RideOut Elementary School Classroom Addition Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Contract

ROE GMP Contract Amendment 1 (1).pdf

51. C41 - Prequalification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 3.6.25

52. C42 - Change Order #2 (Direct Purchasing) for Lake Asbury Junior High School Classroom Addition

Change Order #2 (Direct Purchasing) for LAJ Classroom Addition

Adoption of Consent Agenda

53. Adoption of Consent Agenda

Motion
Motion to Adopt Consent Agenda

Vote Results ( Approved )
Motion: Michele Hanson
Second: Robert Alvero
Ashley Gilhousen - Aye
Beth Clark - Aye
Michele Hanson - Aye
Erin Skipper - Aye
Robert Alvero - Aye

CCEA Update  (Victoria Kidwell)

CESPA Update  (Lonnie Roberts)

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

54. Superintendent's Update

__Superintendent's Update 03-06-2025.pdf

Minutes:

Superintendent Broskie shared the attached visual presentation highlighting the following:

Schools of the Month
February Highlights
New OneClay App
Upcoming Events

School Board Attorney Remarks

55. School Board Attorney Comments

Minutes:

John Steinmetz, School Board Attorney, advised the board that a shade meeting will be held on March 25, 2025.

School Board Member Remarks

56. School Board Member Comments

Minutes:

Mr. Alvero advised he has been touring the schools, visiting seven secondary schools as well as some elementary schools, noting
that a log of good things are happening for the children of Clay County.

Page 123 of 366

DRAFT



Mrs. Clark attended the 2nd annual Women in Agriculture luncheon, noting the essential role that agriculture plays as a provider of
food and advising of the availability of agriculture field trips and sharing positive personal experiences in the field of agriculture.  She
commented on the recently released Auditor General's report and upcoming information re health insurance.  She hopes the Dolly
Parton Imagination Library will make great strides in 2025 in making children reading-ready by the time they come to school. 
Additional funds are needed to extend beyond the current two zip codes, and contributions from individuals and organizations are
welcome.  She also appreciated the work done by the members of the EDFIRST Committee as well as those who volunteer their time
to serve on the Internal Audit Committee.

Mrs. Hanson has attended numerous events this past month.  She is proud of the arrangement made for internal auditing services,
pleased that the Internal Audit Committee will start in April, and impressed with the number of qualified volunteers who will serve the
community on this committee.  She was impressed with Family STEAM night at Keystone Heights Elementary, the district spelling
bee, an S.B. Jennings musical performance, the new concession stand at Keystone Heights Jr./Sr. High, and the pavilion and
improved playground equipment at McRae Elementary.  She appreciated the tax money from Clay County citizens and advised these
funds have reached every school in some way.  She has visited 21 schools, talking with teachers, and noting their contributions and
the importance of working together to find solutions to retain teachers.

Mrs. Gilhousen has spent considerable time on sports fields and in the gymnasium enjoying after-school athletic events.  She noted
the impressive representation of female athletes in the county.  She believes the resounding theme being expressed and shared is
the need for parent engagement with their kids.  The recent Safety and Security seminar provided a great starting point to have
conversations because parents are the primary educators of children and that important relationship can not be replaced.

Mrs. Skipper reflected on the State of Schools address and advised that she has been going into the community and speaking with
clubs and organizations, on behalf of the accomplishments of the board and district, on what has been done to further student
success.  She noted the specific allocation of some funding and the many moving parts to the district, appreciating the time spent with
community members and leaders.  She appreciated the new concession stand and indicated her support for agriculture, anticipating
students being active participants in the upcoming Clay County Agricultural Fair.

Adjournment  (8:15 p.m.)

Superintendent of Schools School Board Chair

Page 124 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C2 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Description
Florida Statutes, State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification and/or action regarding
decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  Actions regarding personnel have been
recommended by Supervisors, approved by the Superintendent and are being forwarded to the Board for action or, if appropriate,
for information.  Personnel Actions, Transfer Requests, Pre-employments, Leave Forms or Directives from the Superintendent
are available for review in the Human Resources Division.

Gap Analysis
These personnel actions are necessary for the effective operation of the school district.

Previous Outcomes
The Clay County School Board has approved each month a Personnel Consent Agenda which contains appointments, re-
appointments, transfers, redesignations, retirements, resignations, and conclude employments.

Expected Outcomes
Approval of the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
To approve the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Personnel changes involving already-allocated positions will result in salary impact per the current Board-approved Salary
Schedule.  This also includes supplemental positions.  See current backup for allocation changes for impact of new positions.

Review Comments

Attachments

PERSONNEL CONSENT AGENDA 3_10_25.pdf

Page 125 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-3_10_25.pdf


Page 126 of 366

DRAFT



Page 127 of 366

DRAFT



Page 128 of 366

DRAFT



Page 129 of 366

DRAFT



Page 130 of 366

DRAFT



Page 131 of 366

DRAFT



Page 132 of 366

DRAFT



Page 133 of 366

DRAFT



Page 134 of 366

DRAFT



Page 135 of 366

DRAFT



Page 136 of 366

DRAFT



Page 137 of 366

DRAFT



Page 138 of 366

DRAFT



Page 139 of 366

DRAFT



Page 140 of 366

DRAFT



Page 141 of 366

DRAFT



Page 142 of 366

DRAFT



Page 143 of 366

DRAFT



Page 144 of 366

DRAFT



Page 145 of 366

DRAFT



Page 146 of 366

DRAFT



Page 147 of 366

DRAFT



Page 148 of 366

DRAFT



Page 149 of 366

DRAFT



Page 150 of 366

DRAFT



Page 151 of 366

DRAFT



Page 152 of 366

DRAFT



Page 153 of 366

DRAFT



Page 154 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C3 - Proposed Supplement Allocations for 2025-2026

Description
Supplemental allocations are proposed each April for the upcoming school year. Such allocations are intended to support student
needs in both academic and athletic settings. Since supplemental positions require additional responsibilities outside of an
employee’s contracted position and/or responsibilities outside of an employee’s contracted work hours, they receive
compensation beyond their regular salary.  The Board and Clay County Education Association (CCEA) agreed to increase the
base multiplier from $35,000 to $37,000 at a total increase cost of $448,403.00.  This was the first increase since the 2008-2009
school year.
 

Gap Analysis
District funded portion of the supplement will be $3,236,375.00.  Federal funded portion of the supplement increase will be
$295,199.00.  The total supplement cost is $3,531,574.00. The following list comprises various transactions that require the
recommendation of the Superintendent and the approval of the School Board.  The supplemental list includes academic and
athletic supplements.  

Previous Outcomes
The Board approves the supplement recommendations from the Superintendent.

Expected Outcomes
Supplements will be distributed sufficiently to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 1 - Student Sucess
Goal 2 - Talent Recruitment, Devlopment and Retention
Goal 5 - Fiscal and Operational Efficiency

Recommendation
Approve the supplements as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
District cost of Academic Supplements: $1,887,725.00, District cost of Athletic Supplements: $1,348,650.00

Review Comments

Attachments

2025-2026 Proposed Supplements 3_14_25.pdf

Page 155 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2025-2026-proposed-supplements-3_14_25.pdf


Page 156 of 366

DRAFT



Page 157 of 366

DRAFT



Page 158 of 366

DRAFT



Page 159 of 366

DRAFT



Page 160 of 366

DRAFT



Page 161 of 366

DRAFT



Page 162 of 366

DRAFT



Page 163 of 366

DRAFT



Page 164 of 366

DRAFT



Page 165 of 366

DRAFT



Page 166 of 366

DRAFT



Page 167 of 366

DRAFT



Page 168 of 366

DRAFT



Page 169 of 366

DRAFT



Page 170 of 366

DRAFT



Page 171 of 366

DRAFT



Page 172 of 366

DRAFT



Page 173 of 366

DRAFT



Page 174 of 366

DRAFT



Page 175 of 366

DRAFT



Page 176 of 366

DRAFT



Page 177 of 366

DRAFT



Page 178 of 366

DRAFT



Page 179 of 366

DRAFT



Page 180 of 366

DRAFT



Page 181 of 366

DRAFT



Page 182 of 366

DRAFT



Page 183 of 366

DRAFT



Page 184 of 366

DRAFT



Page 185 of 366

DRAFT



Page 186 of 366

DRAFT



Page 187 of 366

DRAFT



Page 188 of 366

DRAFT



Page 189 of 366

DRAFT



Page 190 of 366

DRAFT



Page 191 of 366

DRAFT



Page 192 of 366

DRAFT



Page 193 of 366

DRAFT



Page 194 of 366

DRAFT



Page 195 of 366

DRAFT



Page 196 of 366

DRAFT



Page 197 of 366

DRAFT



Page 198 of 366

DRAFT



Page 199 of 366

DRAFT



Page 200 of 366

DRAFT



Page 201 of 366

DRAFT



Page 202 of 366

DRAFT



Page 203 of 366

DRAFT



Page 204 of 366

DRAFT



Page 205 of 366

DRAFT



Page 206 of 366

DRAFT



Page 207 of 366

DRAFT



Page 208 of 366

DRAFT



Page 209 of 366

DRAFT



Page 210 of 366

DRAFT



Page 211 of 366

DRAFT



Page 212 of 366

DRAFT



Page 213 of 366

DRAFT



Page 214 of 366

DRAFT



Page 215 of 366

DRAFT



Page 216 of 366

DRAFT



Page 217 of 366

DRAFT



Page 218 of 366

DRAFT



Page 219 of 366

DRAFT



Page 220 of 366

DRAFT



Page 221 of 366

DRAFT



Page 222 of 366

DRAFT



Page 223 of 366

DRAFT



Page 224 of 366

DRAFT



Page 225 of 366

DRAFT



Page 226 of 366

DRAFT



Page 227 of 366

DRAFT



Page 228 of 366

DRAFT



Page 229 of 366

DRAFT



Page 230 of 366

DRAFT



Page 231 of 366

DRAFT



Page 232 of 366

DRAFT



Page 233 of 366

DRAFT



Page 234 of 366

DRAFT



Page 235 of 366

DRAFT



Page 236 of 366

DRAFT



Page 237 of 366

DRAFT



Page 238 of 366

DRAFT



Page 239 of 366

DRAFT



Page 240 of 366

DRAFT



Page 241 of 366

DRAFT



Page 242 of 366

DRAFT



Page 243 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C4 - Proclamation #25-13 to Establish May 5-9, 2025, as Teacher Appreciation Week in Clay County, and Tuesday, May 6,
2025, as Teacher Appreciation Day

Description
Teacher Appreciation Week and National Teacher Appreciation Day are dedicated annually to the celebration of teachers
worldwide.  At the local level, Clay County Schools will honor the men and women who lend their passion and skills to educate
the children of Clay County.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Establish May 5-9, 2025, as Teacher Appreciation Week in Clay County and Tuesday, May 6, 2025, as National Teacher
Appreciation Day.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources. (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Teacher Appreciation Proclamation 2024-2025.pdf

Page 244 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/teacher-appreciation-proclamation-2024-2025.pdf


SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 
PROCLAMATION # 25-13 

 

 
 
WHEREAS, the dedicated teachers of Clay County serve the families of more than 39,000 students 

through building partnerships with them and their communities; and   
 
WHEREAS, they commit tremendous amounts of time preparing meaningful and engaging lessons 

while also creating safe and welcoming classroom environments; and 
 
WHEREAS, our teachers serve as role models for students and the community, exemplifying qualities 

all citizens possess, while encouraging childrens’ interests, growing their belief in 
themselves, and helping them realize the opportunities that lie ahead; and  

 
WHEREAS,  the future of our county, state, and country depends upon delivering a world-class 

education to our students, thus maintaining a productive citizenry; and  
 
WHEREAS,  effective teachers have a lasting influence on the lives of their students, families, and 

community members as they encourage our children to mature and prosper which in 
turn, deepens the strength of our community, and they deserve our gratitude and 
appreciation; and 

 
WHEREAS,  our community recognizes, lifts up, and celebrates Clay County District Schools’ 

teachers in their work to motivate students to forge ahead and take advantage of all the 
possibilities afforded them. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the School Board of Clay County, Florida, does hereby 
proclaim May 5 – 9, 2025, as Teacher Appreciation Week and May 6, 2025, as Teacher Appreciation 
Day in Clay County.  
 
Duly adopted and approved by the School Board of Clay County, Florida, this 3rd day of April, 
2025. 
       
 

ATTEST:       
 
             
____________________________________         ____________________________________ 
David S. Broskie                        Erin Skipper, School Board Chair 
Superintendent of Schools         
Clay County, Florida   

Page 245 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C5 - Proclamation #25-14 to Establish April 21-25, 2025, as Administrative Professionals' Week and Wednesday, April 23,
2025, as Administrative Professionals' Day in Clay County.

Description
Administrative Professionals' Week and Administrative Professionals' Day are observed annually as a way to show appreciation
to support and clerical staff.  Celebrated worldwide, Administrative Professionals' Day has become one of the largest workplace
observances.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Establish April 21-25, 2025, as Administrative Professionals' Week and Wednesday, April 23, 2025, as Administrative
Professionals' Day (formerly known as Secretary's Day) in Clay County.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources. (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Administrative Professionals Proclamation 2024-2025.pdf

Page 246 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/administrative-professionals-proclamation-2024-2025.pdf


SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 
PROCLAMATION # 25-14 

 

 
 
WHEREAS,  April 21 – 25, 2025, has been designated Administrative Professionals’ Week; and 
 
WHEREAS,  April 23, 2025, has been designated as Administrative Professionals’ Day; and 
 
WHEREAS, since 1952, this occasion has been observed as a means to show gratitude and 

recognition for all administrative support personnel; and 
 
WHEREAS,  our administrative professionals are indispensable in the seamless orchestration of daily 

operations at our schools and district offices through their tireless dedication; and  
 
WHEREAS,  the work of administrative professionals is built upon specialized knowledge in a 

multitude of areas, encompassing customer service, computer applications, and people 
skills, while simultaneously assisting with diverse duties around campuses and the 
community, giving them opportunities to utilize their creativity to maintain a well-run 
organization; and 

 
WHEREAS,  administrative professionals are valued ambassadors, and are often the first Clay 

County District Schools member the public encounters, thus beginning an important 
two-way relationship between our schools and the community; and  

 
WHEREAS,  by exhibiting exuberant courtesy and top-tier professionalism,  

administrative professionals in Clay County District Schools are crucial to implementing  
the district’s vision and mission to cultivate well-rounded citizens prepared to benefit   
from the boundless possibilities for achievement they will experience.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the School Board of Clay County, Florida, does hereby 
proclaim April 21 – 25, 2025 as Administrative Professionals’ Week and April 23, 2025, as 
Administrative Professionals’ Day in Clay County.  
 
Duly adopted and approved by the School Board of Clay County, Florida, this 3rd day of April 
2025.   
 

ATTEST:       
 
             
_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
David S. Broskie                        Erin Skipper, School Board Chair 
Superintendent of Schools 
Clay County, Florida       

Page 247 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C6 - Elementary Student Out of State Travel

Description
The School Board recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an educationally
sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field trips supplement
and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum standards of the
State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student-travel activity which is approved as part of the district's
educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as designated
by the Superintendent.
                                                                                                  Field Trips Details

School Date Destination Group Purpose

Swimming Pen
Creek Elem.

April 21,
2025

Valdosta, GA 6th grade

Students will be able to see and feel kinetic and
potential energy in action as well as distance over
time.  Students will be introduced to many different
species of animals as well as a presentation of their
habitats. 

         
         

 

Gap Analysis
Field trips provide students with a window to the real world that they don't get in the classroom, and they can help students
understand real-world applications to abstract concepts.

Previous Outcomes
All out of county activity trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written district
policy.

Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that learning outcomes from field trips can range from cognitive to affective outcomes. Exposing
students to new experiences and can increase interest and engagement in academics regardless of prior interests.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure that every classroom provides a quality and rigorous instructional experience in order to elevate student outcomes.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve out of state student travel.   

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6904
Heather Teto, Chief of Elementary Education, heather.teto@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6906.

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 248 of 366

DRAFT



Elementary out of state field trip.pdf

Page 249 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/elementary-out-of-state-field-trip.pdf


Page 250 of 366

DRAFT



Page 251 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C7 - Request for Review or Reconsideration of Library Materials Appeals

Description
As outlined in the Board approved Clay County District Schools Challenged Mateirals Policy-Reconsideration or Review of
Library Materials policy, the Petitioner may appeal any Final Decisions of the Superintendent’s Designee, which are based on the
Statutory Compliance Team or his/her own review, and which Final Decisions are or will be forwarded to the School Board for
final approval. 

Within ten (10) calendar days of the Superintendent’s Designee’s decision, the Petitioner shall file with the
Superintendent’s office a request for appeal. This appeal can be accessed on the district’s website and is submitted using
the Google form document. 

1.

Upon receipt of the Request for Appeal, the office of the Superintendent will mail a Notice of Board action to the
Petitioner which states the date of the School Board meeting at which the Final Decision will be considered by the School
Board. 

2.

It is understood that this vote is not a School Board endorsement of the content or subject matter, but a vote to state that
the law and policy have been followed. 

3.

In considering these matters, the School Board shall be sitting as a quasi judicial body, accordingly, and pursuant to F. S.
286.0114(3)(d), speakers shall be allowed to address the Board on this matter.

4.

All decisions of the School Board are final.5.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
It is understood that this vote is not a School Board endorsement of the content or subject matter, but a vote to state that the law
and policy have been followed.  In considering these matters, the School Board shall be sitting as a quasi judicial body,
accordingly, and pursuant to F. S. 286.0114(3)(d), speakers shall be allowed to address the Board on this matter. All decisions of
the School Board are final.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
That the School Board approve the attached list of appeals. 

Contact
Dr. Cynthia Johnson cynthia.johnson@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
0

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 252 of 366

DRAFT

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ycN4N1V586oMy5NFCz_9AGkq9T0O-4qh/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ycN4N1V586oMy5NFCz_9AGkq9T0O-4qh/view


April 2025_Request for Review or Reconsideration of Library Materials Appeals List.pdf

Page 253 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/april-2025_request-for-review-or-reconsideration-of-library-materials-appeals-list.pdf


Request for Review or Reconsideration of Library Materials Appeals

Appealed Title Author ISBN
Pre Challenge 

Grade 
Level/Band

Original Committee 
Review Results

Pre Appeal
Grade 

Level/Band
PAS: Parental 

Advisory 
Status

Review of Appeal 
Results

Big Nate From The Top Lincoln Pierce 9781449402327 K-8
No violation of 
Florida Statute, 

Remain in Collection
K-8

No violation of 
Florida Statute, 

Remain in Collection
*04/03/2025 School Board Meeting

Page 254 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C8 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

Description
The School Board recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an educationally
sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field trips supplement
and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum standards of the
State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student-travel activity which is approved as part of the district's
educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as designated
by the Superintendent.
                                                                                                                                                         Field Trips Details

School Date Destination Group Purpose
Lake Asbury
Junior

5/6-5/8/25
New York
City, NY

EduHam
Winners

Hamilton Broadway Experience

Clay High
3/13 -
3/16/25

Tallahassee,
FL

Robotics
Team

FRC Robotics competition

Keystone
Heights High

6/9 -
6/13/25

Hawthorne,
FL

NJROTC NJROTC Cadet Leadership Camp

Oakleaf High
3/20 -
3/22/25

Tampa, FL Drama Thesby States Competition

Oakleaf High
Various
Dates

Various
Locations

Track &
Field

Track Meets

Oakleaf High
4/24 -
4/26/25

Orlando, FL
Academic
Team

Annual Commissioners Academic Challenge

Ridgeview High
3/17 -
3/20/25

Panama City,
FL

Baseball Baseball Tournament

         

Gap Analysis
Field trips provide students with a window to the real world that they don't get in the classroom, and they can help students
understand real-world applications to abstract concepts.

Previous Outcomes
All out of county activity trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written district
policy.

Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that learning outcomes from field trips can range from cognitive to affective outcomes. Exposing
students to new experiences and can increase interest and engagement in academics regardless of prior interests.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure that every classroom provides a quality and rigorous instructional experience in order to elevate student outcomes.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve out of county student travel.   

Page 255 of 366

DRAFT



Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6904
Treasure Pickett, Chief of Secondary Ed; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

April 2025 Overnight Student Travel.pdf

Page 256 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/april-2025-overnight-student-travel.pdf


Page 257 of 366

DRAFT



Page 258 of 366

DRAFT



Page 259 of 366

DRAFT



Page 260 of 366

DRAFT



Page 261 of 366

DRAFT



Page 262 of 366

DRAFT



Page 263 of 366

DRAFT



Page 264 of 366

DRAFT



Page 265 of 366

DRAFT



Page 266 of 366

DRAFT



Page 267 of 366

DRAFT



Page 268 of 366

DRAFT



Page 269 of 366

DRAFT



Page 270 of 366

DRAFT



Page 271 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C9 - 2025 Proposed Summer Programs Calendar (6th Grade, Jr. High, BLC, ESOL & High School Summer Programs and VPK,
3rd Grade Summer Camp)

Description
 
All student/employee calendars require School Board approval to establish school/work schedules for students and employees. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Prior years' Proposed Summer Program calendars were Board approved and posted on the district website. 

Expected Outcomes
All student calendars require School Board approval to establish school schedules for students and employees. 

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
 
That the Clay County School Board will approve the recommended 6th Grade, Jr. High, BLC, ESOL & High School Summer
Programs 2025 calendar for students and employees. 

Contact
Treasure Pickett, Chief of Secondary Ed,  treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2025 Secondary Summer Program calendar.pdf

VPK & 3rd Grade Summer Reading Camp Calendar.pdf

Page 272 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2025-secondary-summer-program-calendar.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/vpk-3rd-grade-summer-reading-camp-calendar.pdf


Page 273 of 366

DRAFT



Page 274 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C10 - Addition of a component to the Professional Learning Catalog to provide additional professional learning opportunities for
Adult and Community Education teachers.

Description
The Florida legislature recognizes the importance of planning for developing human potential and requires each district to
develop a comprehensive Professional Learning Catalog, which outlines the professional learning opportunities available to
CCDS teachers.  Each district is required to update, revise, and submit a Professional Learning Catalog to provide a detailed
description of each professional learning component. Each unique type of professional learning experience requires a
corresponding component. Changes to the professional learning catalog are required to be approved by the board.

Gap Analysis
Adult and Community Education Teachers have unique professional learning needs.  While they do benefit from many of the
professional learning sessions that are currently offered, there is a need for more specific learning opportunities tailored to their
context.  A component for Adult and Community Education Professional Learning  will be added to the Professional Learning
Catalog to allow teachers to be awarded points for engaging in these professional learning opportunities.

Previous Outcomes
The 2024-2025 CCDS Professional Learning Catalog was approved in June 2024.
 

Expected Outcomes
The CCDS Professional Learning Catalog will include a new component for Adult and Community Education teachers and will
allow teachers to earn in-service points. 
 

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal:   Goal 2: Talent, Recruitment, Development, and Retention
Strategy: 2.3  Retain employees through opportunities for growth and career development leading to high satisfaction and
increased student outcomes.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the additions to the CCDS Professional Learning Catalog.

Contact
Roger Dailey,  Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904  roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$0.00

Review Comments

Attachments

8-007-408_Adult and Community Education Professional Development Training _2024.pdf

Page 275 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/8-007-408_adult-and-community-education-professional-development-training-_2024.pdf


 

Component Title: Adult and Community Education Professional Learning  

Component Number: 8-007-408 

Inservice Points: 60 

Description of Objectives and Activities to be Completed: 

 Participants will: 1) Develop an understanding of the ELP Standards and the four targeted areas 2) Consider the 
organization and structures needed for a manageable positive learning environment 3) Reflect on data and action 
steps to make adjustments as needed to achieve school/program improvement goals. 4)  
Collaboratively/Cross-Curricular plan instruction utilizing curriculum guides, resources, and materials 5)  be able to 
take action steps to make adjustments as needed to achieve school improvement/program goals 6) able to develop 
learning tasks and activities that will allow for increased student engagement 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Component Evaluation Criteria - Detail component effectiveness on: 

a. Address the specific objectives; 
b. Component efficacy of increasing educator knowledge and skill; 
c. Component efficacy of changing educator dispositions or practice in educational settings and 
d. Component efficacy of improving student outcomes 
 
 

a. Address the specific objectives- 
Participants will complete an end-of-course survey to provide feedback on the effectiveness of the component 
activities and component objectives.  
 
b. Component efficacy of increasing educator knowledge and skill 
 Participants' knowledge and skills will be assessed during each session activity through the monitoring of discussions, 
activity artifacts, and action step development. 
 
C. Component efficacy of changing educator dispositions or practice in educational settings  
Participants will design and enact action steps aligned to CCDS Instructional Vision, and School Improvement Plans 
that lead to increased student achievement, using data to reflect on the action steps and make adjustments as needed 
to achieve school/program improvement goals.  
 
D.Component efficacy of improving student outcomes 
Student achievement will increase as evidenced by state, district, and/or school-based  assessments 
 
 

 
 

Page 276 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C11 - Proclamation #25-15, National School Nurse Week

Description
National School Nurse Week has been established to foster a better understanding of the role of school nurses in the educational
setting. This year's National School Nurse Week, May 6-12, 2025, will recognize the vital role that school nurses have played in
improving the health and well-being of our county's children through this Resolution. This year per the National Association of
School Nurses we are recognizing school nurses by the students we serve students are the future and by investing in them today
we are ensuring our world for tomorrow. 

Gap Analysis
This Resolution will promote the School Board of Clay County's goal of providing a safe and healthy environment for students. 

Previous Outcomes
Proclamation #24-17; National School Nurse Day, May 6-12, 2024 approved.

Expected Outcomes
The citizens of Clay County will recognize National School Nurses Week as a time to identify and honor the dedicated
employees of Student Health Services. 

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve Resolution #25-15 endorsing National School Nurse Week.

Contact
Kellie Guilfoyle, Director of Climate and Culture, kellie.guilfoyle@myoneclay.net, 904-336-9641
Kristin Riebe, Coordinator of Nursing Services, Kristin.riebe@myoneclay.net, 904-336-6884

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Nurses Week Proclamation #25-15.pdf

Page 277 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/nurses-week-proclamation-25-15.pdf


 SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 PROCLAMATION # 25-15 

 NATIONAL SCHOOL NURSE WEEK 
 May 6-12, 2025 

 WHEREAS,  providing  a  safe  environment  for  students  is  the  primary  goal  of  Clay  County  District 
 Schools; and 

 WHEREAS,  the  Clay  County  District  Schools  recognize  that  healthcare  professionals  strengthen  and 
 facilitate the educational process by improving and protecting the health status of our students; and 

 WHEREAS,  the  Clay  County  District  Schools  recognize  that  our  nation’s  children  face  an  increasing 
 number  of  chronic  and  severe  health  problems  from  diabetes  to  asthma,  seizures,  obesity,  and 
 depression,  as  well  as  other  mental  and  physical  health  problems.  Frequently,  the  only  attention  a 
 child receives is through the school clinic; and 

 WHEREAS,  the  Clay  County  District  Schools  recognize  that  health  care  professional  support  a  large 
 number  of  students  by  intervening  with  actual  and  potential  health  problems;  collaborating  with  others 
 to  build  student  and  family  capacity  for  adaptation,  self-management,  self-advocacy,  and  learning; 
 and 

 WHEREAS,  these  activities  promoting  the  health  and  safety  of  students  are  important  to  the  citizens 
 of Clay County and others throughout the nation. 

 NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE  IT  RESOLVED,  that  the  School  Board  of  Clay  County,  Florida,  does  hereby 
 proclaim May 7, 2025 as National School Nurse Day. 

 Duly  adopted  and  approved  by  the  School  Board  of  Clay  County,  Florida,  this______day  of 
 __________, 2025. 

 ATTEST: 

 _________________________________  ____________________________________ 
 David S. Broskie  Erin Skipper, School Board Chair 
 Superintendent of Schools 
 Clay County, Florida 

Page 278 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C12 - Proclamation #25-16 Month of the Military Child, Purple Up! Day

Description
Proclamation of Month of the Military Child, Purple Up! Day: April 16, 2025.
Month of the Military Child is sponsored by the Department of Defense Military Community and Family Policy and supported
by many other organizations such as the Department of Defense Education Activity (DoDEA).  Purple UP! for Military Kids is a
day for DoDEA communities to wear purple in a show of support and to thank military children for their strength and sacrifices. 
Air Force blue, Army green, Navy blue, Marine red, and Coast Guard blue are all throught to combine together as a single color:
purple.  Purple Up! day is recognized world wide across military installations on April 23rd and locally on April 16th. 

Gap Analysis
Military connected students represent 12% of our overall student population, and this event gives us the opportunity to recognize
their service to the country.

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
The citizens of Clay County will show appreciation and further support students and families who serve or who have served in
all branches of the military.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 3: Family and Community Engagement
Strategy 2: Collaborate with parents and community partners to increse stakeholder participation within our district.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the proclamation.

Contact
Kellie Guilfoyle, Climate & Culture

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2025_month-of-military-child-proclamation.pdf

Page 279 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2025_month-of-military-child-proclamation.pdf


 

SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY 
PROCLAMATION #25-16 

 

 
WHEREAS, April is designated as the Month of the Military Child by the Department of Defense and 
the military community as a special time to recognize and pay tribute to military families and their 
dependent children for the their commitment, courage, and support of our Armed Forces; and 

 
WHEREAS, twelve percent of the student population in Clay County District Schools is 
military-connected and because these students are a source of great pride to our district, it is rightful 
to take time to recognize their contributions to school, community and country; and 

 
WHEREAS, we would like to let our men and women in uniform know that while they are taking care 
of us, we are taking care of their children; and 

 
WHEREAS, Air Force blue, Army green, Marine red, Navy blue, and Coast Guard blue are all thought 
to combine as a single color, purple; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the School Board of Clay County, Florida, does hereby 
honor the sacrifices made by military families in Clay County, especially the dependent children of 
military members in service to their country, and extend our gratitude and well wishes for all by 
declaring April as Month of the Military Child and celebrating Wednesday, April 16, 2025, as Purple 
Up Day! For Military Kids Day. 

 
Duly adopted and approved by the School Board of Clay County, Florida, this 3rd day of April, 
2025. 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 

 
David S. Broskie Erin Skipper 
Superintendent of Schools School Board Chair 

Page 280 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C13 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2024-2025

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district department and division is staffed for the 2024-2025 school year.
The School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
These allocation changes are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904) 336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Reflected in attachment.

Review Comments

Attachments

04.03.25 - 24-25 Allocation Summary - Google Sheets.pdf

Page 281 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/040325-24-25-allocation-summary-google-sheets.pdf


PROPOSED CHANGES TO STAFF ALLOCATIONS  2024-2025 SUMMARY  Board Meeting, April 03, 2025

Pending Board Approval 04/03/2025

School Allocation Comment Salary Benefits Total Cost

2024-2025 ACTIONS

General Funds

TOTAL:
Federal Funds 410

TOTAL: $0 $0 $0

Add Delete

RHS - 0431 RHS Media Technical Assistant

$0 $0 $0

(0.4) ($9,702) ($3,406) ($13,108)Principal-approved employee request.

($9,702) ($3,406) ($13,108)

Page 282 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C14 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2025-2026

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district department and division is staffed for the 2024-2025 school year.
The School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
These allocation changes are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904) 336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Reflected in attachment.

Review Comments

Attachments

04.03.25 - 25-26 Allocation Summary.pdf

Page 283 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/040325-25-26-allocation-summary.pdf


PROPOSED CHANGES TO STAFF ALLOCATIONS  2025-2026 SUMMARY  Board Meeting, April 03, 2025

Pending Board Approval 04/03/2025

School Add Delete Allocation Comment Salary Benefits Total Cost

2025-2026 ACTIONS

General Funds

RHS - 0431 (0.4) RHS Media Technical Assistant Principal-approved employee request. ($9,702) ($3,406) ($13,108)

POE - 0651 (0.9) ESE Assistant, Behavior Health 
Approved for 24-25 SY. Inadvertently omitted 
on worksheet in March for 25-26 SY. $0) $0) $0)

POE - 0651 0.9 ESE Assistant, General Health
Approved for 24-25 SY. Inadvertently omitted 
on worksheet in March for 25-26 SY. $0) $0) $0)

TOTAL: ($9,702) ($3,406) ($13,108)
Millage 105

PES - 0471 1.0 School Safety Officer
Approved for 24-25 SY. Inadvertently omitted 
on worksheet in March for 25-26 SY. $0) $0) $0)

TBE - 0531 1.0 School Safety Officer
Approved for 24-25 SY. Inadvertently omitted 
on worksheet in March for 25-26 SY. $0) $0) $0)

$0) $0) $0)
Federal Funds 410

ROE - 0541 (1.0) 3.25 Cafeteria Assistant
Approved for 24-25 SY. Inadvertently omitted 
on worksheet in March for 25-26 SY. $0) $0) $0)

ROE - 0541 1.0 3.75 Cafeteria Assistant
Approved for 24-25 SY. Inadvertently omitted 
on worksheet in March for 25-26 SY. $0) $0) $0)

ROE - 0541 (1.0) 5.00 Cafeteria Assistant
Approved for 24-25 SY. Inadvertently omitted 
on worksheet in March for 25-26 SY. $0) $0) $0)

ROE - 0541 1.0 5.50 Cafeteria Assistant
Approved for 24-25 SY. Inadvertently omitted 
on worksheet in March for 25-26 SY. $0) $0) $0)

SPC - 0571 (1.0) 5.5 Cafeteria Van Driver
Approved for 24-25 SY. Inadvertently omitted 
on worksheet in March for 25-26 SY. $0) $0) $0)

SPC - 0571 1.0 5.5 Cafeteria Assistant
Approved for 24-25 SY. Inadvertently omitted 
on worksheet in March for 25-26 SY. $0) $0) $0)

TOTAL: $0) $0) $0)

Page 284 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C15 - Monthly Financial Reports for February, 2025

Description
The Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008, are submitted for the use and consideration of the Board
for the month ending February 28, 2025.

Gap Analysis
The Monthly Financial Reports show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements.

Previous Outcomes
It has been a past (normal) practice to provide Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008.
 

Expected Outcomes
The Monthly Financial Reports are provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's finances.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Strategy 2:  Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize
available resources necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.  Promote fiscal
transparency and communication.
 

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board accept for use and consideration the Superintendent's Monthly Financial Reports for
February, 2025.
 

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs, (904) 336-6721, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The Monthly Financial Reports reflect the year-to-date results of operations.

Review Comments

Attachments

February 2025 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

Contracts Signed by Superintendent for 50K to 100K.pdf

February 2025 Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

Page 285 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/february-2025-monthly-board-property-report.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contracts-signed-by-superintendent-for-50k-to-100k_1.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/february-2025-monthly-board-financial-report.pdf


Page 286 of 366

DRAFT



Page 287 of 366

DRAFT



Page 288 of 366

DRAFT



Page 289 of 366

DRAFT



Page 290 of 366

DRAFT



Page 291 of 366

DRAFT



Page 292 of 366

DRAFT



Page 293 of 366

DRAFT



Page 294 of 366

DRAFT



Page 295 of 366

DRAFT



Page 296 of 366

DRAFT



Page 297 of 366

DRAFT



Page 298 of 366

DRAFT



Page 299 of 366

DRAFT



Page 300 of 366

DRAFT



Page 301 of 366

DRAFT



Page 302 of 366

DRAFT



Page 303 of 366

DRAFT



Page 304 of 366

DRAFT



Page 305 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C16 - Budget Amendment Report for February 28, 2025

Description
Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006 requires that the School Board approve amendments to the
district school budget whenever the function and object amounts in the accounts prescribed by the State Board form are changed
from the original budget approved by the School Board.  The Budget Amendments are procedurally necessary to update our
budget to reflect changes as outlined in the attached statements.

Gap Analysis
The monthly budget amendment show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements. 

Previous Outcomes
Reported as per Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006.

Expected Outcomes
The monthly budget amendment is provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's budget.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available
resources necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approval of the Budget Amendments for February 2025 as presented.

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs

Financial Impact
See attached statements for a complete analysis of the financial impact.

Review Comments

Attachments

Feb 2025 Budget Amendment Stmt.pdf

Page 306 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/feb-2025-budget-amendment-stmt.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CLAY COUNTY SCHOOLS RESOLUTION TO AMEND DISTRICT BUDGET 
FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 

FOR MONTH ENDING February 28, 2025 
 

 Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006 requires that the School Board approve amendments to 
the district school budget whenever the function and object amounts in the accounts prescribed by the State Board form 
are changed from the original budget approved by the School Board. The Budget Amendments are procedurally necessary 
to update our budget to reflect changes outlined in the attached statements. 
 

FUND DESCRIPTION 

GENERAL FUND (100) THE GENERAL FUND IS THE LARGEST FUND WITHIN 
THE ACCOUNTING STRUCTURE OF THE SCHOOL 
DISTRICT. THIS FUND IS USED TO REPORT THE 
DISTRICT’S DAILY, MONTHLY AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
OPERATIONS OF THE SCHOOLS AND DISTRICT OFFICE. 

GENERAL FUND VOTED MILLAGE (105) THE VOTED MILLAGE FUND ARE FUNDS APPROVED BY 
THE CLAY COUNTY VOTERS TO SUPPORT SAFETY AND 
SECURITY AND OTHER OPERATIONAL EXPENDITURES. 

DEBT SERVICE (2XX) DEBT SERVICE FUNDS ARE USED TO ACCOUNT FOR AND 
REPORT FINANCIAL RESOURCES THAT ARE 
RESTRICTED, COMMITTED, OR ASSIGNED TO 
EXPENDITURES FOR THE DISTRICT’S PRINCIPAL AND 
INTEREST PAYMENTS FOR ITS OUTSTANDING DEBT. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND(3XX) CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS ARE USED TO ACCOUNT FOR 
AND REPORT FINANCIAL RESOURCES THAT ARE 
RESTRICTED, COMMITTED, OR ASSIGNED TO 
EXPENDITURES FOR MAJOR CAPITAL OUTLAYS, 
INCLUDING THE ACQUISITION OR CONSTRUCTION OF 
CAPITAL FACILITIES AND THEIR CAPITAL ASSETS. 

SPECIAL REVENUE FOOD SERVICE (410) SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS, FOOD SERVICES ARE USED 
TO ACCOUNT FOR AND REPORT THE PROCEEDS OF 
SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES THAT ARE RESTRICTED 
OR COMMITTED TO EXPENDITURES FOR THE FOOD 
SERVICES OPERATIONS. 

SPECIAL REVENUE OTHER (420,44X) 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS, OTHER ARE USED TO 
ACCOUNT FOR AND REPORT THE PROCEEDS OF 
SPECIFIC FEDERAL REVENUE SUCH AS TITLE I, TITLE II, 
TITLE III, CARES ACT FUNDING THAT ARE RESTRICTED 
OR COMMITTED TO EXPENDITURES FOR THE SPECIFIC 
PROGRAM. 

 
  

Page 307 of 366

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY SCHOOLS 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Item Backup 
 
FEBRUARY 2025 IMPACT STATEMENT 

PURPOSE OF IMPACT STATEMENT 

To reflect monthly adjustments to school and district budgets and related impact on fund balance 
due to: 

a. Increases/decreases in estimated revenue. 
b. Adjustments to appropriations based on changing needs and new information. 

 
GENERAL FUND 100: 

Increases to Estimated Revenue 

1 Increase in Other Federal Thru State $11,000 
2 Increase in Gifts, Grants & Bequests 25,348 
3 Increase in Student Fees 5,226 
4 Increase in Misc. Local Resources 166,372 
 Total Adjustments to Estimated Revenue $ 207,946 

 
1. The increase to Other Federal Thru State revenue was Science Teacher Bonus awards. 
2. Clay County received donations from various organizations for the Athletic Golf Tournament and 

the Art Show. 
3. The increase to Student fees were Adult and Community Education testing fees. 
4. The Increase in Misc. Local Resources was due to All County Fine Arts donations and fees; 

internal account funds for purchases; Spelling Bee and Math Field Day funds  
 
Increases and/or Decreases to Appropriations 

1 Decrease in Instruction ($36,728) 
2 Decrease in Pupil Personnel Services (2,928) 
3 Increase in Instructional Media 1,853 
4 Increase in Instructional Training/Development Services 124,734 
5 Increase in School Administration 19,337 
6 Decrease in Facilities Acquisition & Construction  (699,982) 
7 Decrease in Fiscal Services (125,000) 

  8 Increase in Central Services 18,009 
  9 Increase in Pupil Transportation Services  12,026 
10 Increase in Operation of Plant 15,666 
 Total Adjustments to Appropriations: ($673,013) 

 
Adjustments to appropriations are based on changing needs and new information. 

The impact on the General Fund Balance for the items described above is an increase to fund 
balance of $880,959. 

 
 

Page 308 of 366

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY SCHOOLS 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Item Backup 
 
 
ONE MILL FUND 105: 

To reflect monthly adjustments to One Mill Fund and related impact on fund balance due to: 

a. Increases and/or decreases in estimated revenue. No monetary effect. 
b. Adjustments to appropriations based on changing needs. No monetary effect. 

 
There was no change to the fund balance for the One Mill Fund 

 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS (2XX): 

To reflect monthly adjustments to debt service budgets and related impact on fund balance due to: 

a. Increases and/or decreases in estimated revenue. No monetary effect. 
b. Adjustments to appropriations based on changing needs. No monetary effect. 

 
There was no change to the fund balance for the Debt Service funds. 

 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS (3XX): 

To reflect adjustments to major capital construction projects budgets and related impact on fund balance due 
to: 

a. Increases and/or decreases in estimated revenue. No monetary effect. 
 

 

Increases and/or Decreases to Appropriations 

1 Decrease in Fund 370 - Facilities Acquisition & 
Construction 

($24,000) 

2 Increase in Fund 380 - Facilities Acquisition & 
Construction 

100,002 

3 Increase in Fund 392 - Facilities Acquisition & 
Construction 

98,496 

   
 Total Adjustments to Appropriations: $174,498 

 
Adjustments to appropriations are based on changing needs and new information. 

The impact on the General Fund Balance for the items described above is decrease to fund balance 
of $174,498. 
 

 
Page 309 of 366

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY SCHOOLS 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Item Backup 
 
SCHOOL FOOD SERVICES (410): 

To reflect monthly adjustments to school and district Food Services program budgets and related 
impact on fund balance due to: 
 

a. Increases and/or decreases in estimated revenue. No monetary effect. 
b. Adjustments to appropriations based on changing needs. No monetary effect. 

 
There was no change to the fund balance for School Food Services  

 

SPECIAL REVENUE OTHER (42X) 

To reflect monthly adjustments to school and district budgets and related impact on fund balance 
due to: 

Increases and/or Decreases to Revenue 

1 Decrease in Title 1 ($277,218) 
2 Increase in Title III 59,273 
3 Increase in Title IV 234,772 

   
 Total Adjustments to Revenue: $16,827 

 
Adjustments to Title I was an adjustment to roll forward estimations; the increases to Title III and 
IV were new award amounts received, all totaling $16,827 

Adjustments to appropriations of $16,827 are based on changing needs and new information. 

There was no change to the fund balance of the Special Revenue Funds. 
 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND – ESSR/AARP (44X) 

To reflect monthly adjustments to school and district ESSR and AARP program budgets and 
related impact on fund balance due to: 
 

a. Increases and/or decreases in estimated revenue. No monetary effect. 
b. Adjustments to appropriations based on changing needs. No monetary effect. 

 

There was no change to the fund balance of the Special Revenue Funds. 

 

Page 310 of 366

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOL 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND DISTRICT BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

GENERAL FUND 

FUND 100 

DISCOVERING ENDLESS POSSIBILITIES 

Cloy Cot1nry D1H11t:t Sr hoots 1s on Ecwol Oppo,cvn,t} Employer 

Page 311 of 366

DRAFT



Beginning Budget Adj Working

Budget Budget
3120    Federal Impact Funds          $525,000 $525,000 $0 $525,000

3190    Other Federal Direct          $375,000 $617,636 $0 $617,636

3202    Medicaid                      $2,175,000 $2,175,000 $0 $2,175,000

3280    Federal Through Local Revenue $350,000 $612,873 $0 $612,873

3290    Other Federal Thru State      $0 $2,500 $11,000 $13,500

3310    Florida Educ Finance Program  $251,157,323 $251,157,323 $0 $251,157,323

3315    Workforce Development         $1,136,452 $1,136,452 $0 $1,136,452

3317    Workforce Performance Incentiv $0 $0 $0 $0

3320    State Auto License CO and DS  $22,000 $22,000 $0 $22,000

3340    Other State Revenues          $40,000 $40,000 $0 $40,000

3350    Other Categorical             $37,433,038 $37,433,038 $0 $37,433,038

3360    School Recognition            $0 $3,150,262 $0 $3,150,262

3370    VPK                           $700,000 $700,000 $0 $700,000

3380    State Revenues Thru Local     $0 $0 $0 $0

3390    Miscellaneous State Revenues  $6,165,946 $7,444,447 $0 $7,444,447

3410    Taxes                         $73,464,756 $73,464,756 $0 $73,464,756

3421    Tax Redemptions               $1,300,000 $1,300,000 $0 $1,300,000

3425    Rent                          $600,000 $600,000 $0 $600,000

3430    Interest  Incl Profit On Inves $3,000,000 $3,000,000 $0 $3,000,000

3440    Gifts   Grants & Bequests     $225,000 $311,300 $25,348 $336,648

3460    Student Fees                  $66,748 $102,323 $5,226 $107,549

3470    Other  Fees                   $1,209,763 $1,209,763 $0 $1,209,763

3480    Operating Revenue             $0 $0 $0 $0

3490    Misc Local Resources          $10,765,343 $10,914,652 $166,372 $11,081,024

3630    Transfer From Capital Projects $6,000,000 $7,011,557 $0 $7,011,557

3733    Sale of Capital Asset         $85,000 $85,000 $0 $85,000

3740    Insurance Loss Recoveries     $5,000 $5,000 $0 $5,000

$396,801,369 $403,020,881 $207,946 $403,228,828

Month Ending February 28, 2025

Function Description Adopted

Revenue - Totals

SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND DISTRICT BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

GENERAL FUND REVENUE

FUND 100          

Page 312 of 366

DRAFT



Beginning Budget Adj Working
Budget Budget

100     Salaries                      $155,389,872 $157,503,520 $7,045 $157,510,564

200     Employee Benefits             $51,693,439 $51,915,968 $918 $51,916,886

300     Purchased Services            $34,356,424 $35,640,320 ($41,015) $35,599,303

400     Energy Services               $24,165 $24,404 $258 $24,662

500     Material and Supplies         $16,627,445 $16,444,019 ($171,634) $16,272,386

600     Capital Outlay                $2,622,270 $3,006,769 $165,025 $3,171,797

700     Other                         $1,312,261 $2,164,113 $2,675 $2,166,788

$262,025,876 $266,699,112 ($36,728) $266,662,388

Beginning Budget Adj Working
Budget Budget

100     Salaries                      $13,822,008 $14,039,177 $18,886 $14,058,063

200     Employee Benefits             $4,790,069 $4,830,489 $4,542 $4,835,030

300     Purchased Services            $2,049,379 $1,937,078 ($23,273) $1,913,805

400     Energy Services               $5,500 $5,582 $0 $5,582

500     Material and Supplies         $416,359 $384,068 ($4,020) $380,048

600     Capital Outlay                $184,908 $114,320 $602 $114,922

700     Other                         $49,155 $50,330 $335 $50,665

200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0

300     Purchased Services            $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0

200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0

200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0

300     Purchased Services            $502,880 $502,880 $0 $502,880

500     Material and Supplies         $0 $0 $0 $0

600     Capital Outlay                $0 $0 $0 $0

300     Purchased Services            $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0

200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0

300     Purchased Services            $0 $7,000 $450 $7,450

500     Material and Supplies         $0 $0 $0 $0

600     Capital Outlay                $0 $68,500 ($450) $68,050

700     Other                         $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $62,342 $62,342 $0 $62,342

200     Employee Benefits             $19,991 $19,991 $0 $19,991

100     Salaries                      $3,151,479 $3,191,435 $0 $3,191,435

200     Employee Benefits             $1,234,715 $1,238,057 $0 $1,238,057

300     Purchased Services            $94,756 $204,359 ($22,944) $181,415

SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY 
RESOLUTION TO AMEND DISTRICT BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR -2024-2025
GENERAL FUND EXPENSES    

FUND 100
Month Ending February 28, 2025

5000              Instruction
Function Description Adopted

Total Expenses Function 5000

Function Description Adopted

6100          Pupil Personnel Services      

6110          Social Work                   

6120          Guidance Services             

6130          Health Services               

6140          Psychological Services        

6150          Parent Involvement            

6190          Guidance Administration       

6200          Instructional Media           

Page 313 of 366

DRAFT



Beginning Budget Adj Working
Budget Budget

Function Description Adopted

500     Material and Supplies         $100,475 $87,960 ($1,510) $86,450

600     Capital Outlay                $306,371 $221,856 $28,082 $249,939

700     Other                         $2,025 $2,510 ($1,775) $735

100     Salaries                      $4,029,748 $4,065,503 $1,188 $4,066,691

200     Employee Benefits             $1,421,093 $1,421,797 $970 $1,422,767

300     Purchased Services            $86,017 $80,045 $0 $80,045

400     Energy Services               $700 $700 $0 $700

500     Material and Supplies         $69,448 $70,821 $0 $70,821

600     Capital Outlay                $46,909 $64,220 $0 $64,220

700     Other                         $17,759 $13,386 ($200) $13,186

100     Salaries                      $2,484,656 $2,550,408 $0 $2,550,408

200     Employee Benefits             $854,131 $862,345 $800 $863,145

300     Purchased Services            $683,889 $837,505 $18,318 $855,823

500     Material and Supplies         $622,191 $601,725 ($2,538) $599,187

600     Capital Outlay                $16,500 $17,808 $180 $17,988

700     Other                         $170,480 $243,148 ($984) $242,164

100     Salaries                      $2,676,657 $2,672,368 $0 $2,672,368

200     Employee Benefits             $985,441 $986,193 $0 $986,193

300     Purchased Services            $3,030,691 $3,033,118 $125,000 $3,158,118

500     Material and Supplies         $74,841 $72,841 $0 $72,841

600     Capital Outlay                $221,160 $213,860 ($18,000) $195,860

700     Other                         $0 $8,184 $0 $8,184

100     Salaries                      $272,258 $272,258 $0 $272,258

200     Employee Benefits             $140,520 $140,520 $0 $140,520

300     Purchased Services            $1,064,958 $1,154,958 $0 $1,154,958

500     Material and Supplies         $5,250 $5,250 $0 $5,250

600     Capital Outlay                $750 $750 $0 $750

700     Other                         $28,350 $28,350 $0 $28,350

100     Salaries                      $308,465 $308,465 $0 $308,465

200     Employee Benefits             $173,493 $173,493 $0 $173,493

300     Purchased Services            $32,175 $27,675 $0 $27,675

400     Energy Services               $1,500 $1,500 $0 $1,500

500     Material and Supplies         $11,290 $11,290 $0 $11,290

600     Capital Outlay                $4,500 $4,500 $0 $4,500

700     Other                         $25,000 $25,000 $0 $25,000

100     Salaries                      $12,887,163 $13,107,320 $0 $13,107,320

200     Employee Benefits             $4,667,074 $4,704,273 $0 $4,704,273

300     Purchased Services            $106,596 $117,383 ($5,936) $111,447

400     Energy Services               $0 $0 $0 $0

500     Material and Supplies         $122,627 $89,532 $5,600 $95,132

600     Capital Outlay                $72,628 $139,989 $18,990 $158,979

700     Other                         $33,970 $39,106 $683 $39,789

100     Salaries                      $952,769 $952,769 $0 $952,769

200     Employee Benefits             $336,665 $336,665 $0 $336,665

300     Purchased Services            $1,861,370 $1,861,370 ($1,500) $1,859,870

400     Energy Services               $5,100 $5,100 $0 $5,100

500     Material and Supplies         $27,052 $27,052 $6,000 $33,052

6300          Inst   & Curric   Dev Services

6400          Inst   Staff Training Services

6500          Instruction Related Technology

7100          Board                         

7200          General Administration        

7300          School Administration         

7400          Facilities Aquisition & Const 

Page 314 of 366

DRAFT



Beginning Budget Adj Working
Budget Budget

Function Description Adopted

600     Capital Outlay                $4,624,342 $4,763,101 ($704,482) $4,058,619

700     Other                         $2,300 $1,013,857 $0 $1,013,857

100     Salaries                      $1,188,312 $1,188,312 $0 $1,188,312

200     Employee Benefits             $393,342 $393,342 $0 $393,342

300     Purchased Services            $425,856 $327,546 ($125,000) $202,546

500     Material and Supplies         $22,027 $21,977 $0 $21,977

600     Capital Outlay                $120,182 $120,232 $500 $120,732

700     Other                         $2,650 $2,650 ($500) $2,150

100     Salaries                      $103,175 $248,448 $0 $248,448

200     Employee Benefits             $33,380 $48,912 $0 $48,912

600     Capital Outlay                $0 $0 $0 $0

700     Other                         $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $2,174,556 $2,192,556 $0 $2,192,556

200     Employee Benefits             $779,485 $780,985 $9 $780,994

300     Purchased Services            $748,838 $772,920 $19,000 $791,920

400     Energy Services               $7,762 $7,762 $0 $7,762

500     Material and Supplies         $98,822 $95,922 $0 $95,922

600     Capital Outlay                $344,488 $345,913 ($1,000) $344,913

700     Other                         $92,298 $93,122 $0 $93,122

100     Salaries                      $8,672,394 $8,677,044 $0 $8,677,044

200     Employee Benefits             $3,138,456 $3,139,161 $0 $3,139,161

300     Purchased Services            $815,981 $891,986 $14,550 $906,536

400     Energy Services               $1,865,435 $1,865,135 $0 $1,865,135

500     Material and Supplies         $1,211,583 $1,202,270 $0 $1,202,270

600     Capital Outlay                $893,095 $1,309,532 ($2,524) $1,307,008

700     Other                         $12,500 $17,500 $0 $17,500

100     Salaries                      $7,097,541 $7,256,198 $0 $7,256,198

200     Employee Benefits             $3,041,594 $3,065,711 $0 $3,065,711

300     Purchased Services            $7,292,911 $7,353,215 $904 $7,354,118

400     Energy Services               $7,356,985 $7,358,117 ($1,161) $7,356,956

500     Material and Supplies         $1,113,410 $1,111,944 $11,824 $1,123,769

600     Capital Outlay                $205,689 $267,202 $4,099 $271,300

700     Other                         $100 $100 $0 $100

100     Salaries                      $3,882,220 $3,886,172 $0 $3,886,172

200     Employee Benefits             $1,495,640 $1,496,369 $0 $1,496,369

300     Purchased Services            $2,527,671 $2,427,671 $0 $2,427,671

400     Energy Services               $166,558 $166,558 $0 $166,558

500     Material and Supplies         $1,164,808 $1,264,707 $0 $1,264,707

600     Capital Outlay                $281,434 $217,917 $0 $217,917

700     Other                         $15,000 $15,000 $0 $15,000

100     Salaries                      $1,151,973 $1,152,230 $0 $1,152,230

200     Employee Benefits             $407,323 $407,346 $0 $407,346

300     Purchased Services            $3,600 $3,658 $0 $3,658

400     Energy Services               $14,000 $14,000 $0 $14,000

500     Material and Supplies         $7,301 $7,301 $0 $7,301

600     Capital Outlay                $3,000 $3,000 $0 $3,000

700     Other                         $1,000 $16 $0 $16

7500          Fiscal Services               

7600          Food Services                 

7700          Central Services              

7800          Pupil Transportation Services 

7900          Operation Of Plant            

8100          Maintenance Of Plant          

8200          Administrative Technology Svcs

Page 315 of 366

DRAFT



Beginning Budget Adj Working
Budget Budget

Function Description Adopted

100     Salaries                      $162,134 $168,939 $0 $168,939

200     Employee Benefits             $78,293 $78,821 $0 $78,821

300     Purchased Services            $0 $41,427 $0 $41,427

500     Material and Supplies         $116,443 $106,343 $0 $106,343

600     Capital Outlay                $232 $4,379 $0 $4,379

700     Other                         $16,000 $16,000 $0 $16,000

700     Other                         $0 $0 $0 $0

$132,800,361 $135,729,000 ($636,285) $135,092,715

9100          Community Services            

9200          Debt Service                  

Total Expenses Function 6000 to 9900

Page 316 of 366

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOL 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND DISTRICT BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 

GENERAL FUND - ONE MILL 

FUND 105 

DISCOVERING ENDLESS POSSIBILITIES 

Cloy County D1>t11u Schools rs on Cquul Opporrunfi) Employt•r 

Page 317 of 366

DRAFT



Beginning Budget Adj Working

Budget Budget

Revenue $0

Revenue $19,683,750

Revenue $0

$19,683,750 $19,683,750 $0 $19,683,750

Employee Benefits             $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $0 $2,000,000

Purchased Services            $0 $0 $0 $0

Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0

Purchased Services            $125,180 $125,180 $0 $125,180

Material and Supplies         $0 $0 $0 $0

Capital Outlay                $11,872,504 $11,872,503 $0 $11,872,503

Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0

Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0

Purchased Services            $11,000 $11,000 $0 $11,000

Capital Outlay                $157,186 $157,186 $0 $157,186

Salaries                      $585,950 $585,950 $0 $585,950

Employee Benefits             $217,805 $217,801 $0 $217,801

Purchased Services            $9,393,897 $9,393,915 $0 $9,393,915

Energy Services               $10,000 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Material and Supplies         $85,710 $85,693 $0 $85,693

Capital Outlay                $142,876 $142,876 $0 $142,876

Other                         $7,200 $7,200 $0 $7,200

Salaries                      $150,248 $150,248 $0 $150,248

Employee Benefits             $63,859 $63,860 $0 $63,860

$24,823,415 $24,823,411 $0 $24,823,411Total Expenses

600     

700     

8100          Maintenance Of Plant          

100     

200     

100     

200     

300     

400     

500     

200     

300     

7800          Pupil Transportation Services 

600     

7900          Operation Of Plant            

300     

500     

600     

7700          Central Services              

100     

5100          Basic FEFP K-12               

200     

300     

7400          Facilities Aquisition & Const 

200     

000     $19,683,750 $0 $19,683,750

Total Revenue

Month Ending February 28, 2025

Function Description Adopted  

3400          Revenue from Local Sources

SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND DISTRICT BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

ONE MILL

FUND 105

Page 318 of 366

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOL 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND DISTRICT BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2024- 2025

DEBT SERVICE 

FUND2XX 

DISCOVERING ENDLESS POSSIBILITIES 

Cloy Cot1ncy Disrr,u 5< hool� 1s on Eouol Oppo,etmrr} Employer 

Page 319 of 366

DRAFT



Beginning Working
Budget Budget

3340    Other State Revenues          000     Revenue $218,325 $218,325 $0 $218,325

3430    Interest  Incl Profit On Inves 000     Revenue $1,000 $1,000 $0 $1,000

292     3430    Interest  Incl Profit On Inves 000     Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0

293     3430    Interest  Incl Profit On Inves 000     Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0

3430    Interest  Incl Profit On Inves 000     Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0

3630    Transfer From Capital Projects 000     Revenue $4,606,523 $4,606,523 $0 $4,606,523

299     3630    Transfer From Capital Projects 000     Revenue $1,615,549 $1,615,549 $0 $1,615,549

$6,441,397 $6,441,397 $0 $6,441,397

710     Redemption of Principal       $0 $0 $0 $0

720     Interest                      $0 $0 $0 $0

730     Dues and Fees                 $0 $0 $0 $0

710     Redemption of Principal       $150,000 $150,000 $0 $150,000

720     Interest                      $68,325 $68,325 $0 $68,325

730     Dues and Fees                 $1,000 $1,000 $0 $1,000

710     Redemption of Principal       $0 $0 $0 $0

720     Interest                      $0 $0 $0 $0

730     Dues and Fees                 $3,700 $3,700 $0 $3,700

710     Redemption of Principal       $0 $0 $0 $0

720     Interest                      $0 $0 $0 $0

730     Dues and Fees                 $441 $7,441 $0 $7,441

710     Redemption of Principal       $0 $0 $0 $0

720     Interest                      $0 $0 $0 $0

730     Dues and Fees                 $441 $441 $0 $441

710     Redemption of Principal       $1,975,000 $1,975,000 $0 $1,975,000

720     Interest                      $2,626,524 $2,626,524 $0 $2,626,524

730     Dues and Fees                 $5,000 $5,000 $0 $5,000

298     9200    Debt Service                  730     Dues and Fees                 $0 $0 $0 $0

710     Redemption of Principal       $1,561,561 $1,561,573 $0 $1,561,573

720     Interest                      $53,989 $53,994 $0 $53,994

730     Dues and Fees                 $0 $0 $0 $0

$6,445,981 $6,452,996 $0 $6,452,996

SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY 
RESOLUTION TO AMEND DISTRICT BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025
DEBT SERVICE

FUND 2XX
Month Ending February 28, 2025

Fund Function Description Obj Description Adopted Budget 
Adj

222     

294     

Total Revenue

210     9200    Debt Service                  

222     9200    Debt Service                  

290     9200    Debt Service                  

292     9200    Debt Service                  

293     9200    Debt Service                  

Total Expenses

294     9200    Debt Service                  

299     9200    Debt Service                  

Page 320 of 366

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOL 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND DISTRICT BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

 CAPITAL PROJECTS 

FUND3XX 

DISCOVERING ENDLESS POSSIBILITIES 

Cloy Councy D1srr,cc S<.11oob ,son Equal Opporwr11ry Employer 

Page 321 of 366

DRAFT



Beginning Working
Budget Budget

340     3430    Interest  Incl Profit On Inves 000     Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0

3320    State Auto License CO and DS  000     Revenue $1,635,301 $1,635,301 $0 $1,635,301

3430    Interest  Incl Profit On Inves 000     Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0

3410    Taxes                         000     Revenue $29,499,768 $29,499,768 $0 $29,499,768

3430    Interest  Incl Profit On Inves 000     Revenue $476,475 $476,475 $0 $476,475

3733    Sale of Capital Asset         000     Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0

3430    Interest  Incl Profit On Inves 000     Revenue $737,494 $737,494 $0 $737,494

3490    Misc Local Resources          000     Revenue $10,927,445 $10,927,445 $0 $10,927,445

391     3430    Interest  Incl Profit On Inves 000     Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0

392     3430    Interest  Incl Profit On Inves 000     Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0

393     3430    Interest  Incl Profit On Inves 000     Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0

3390    Miscellaneous State Revenues  000     Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0

3397    Charter School Capital Outlay 000     Revenue $796,000 $1,011,557 $0 $1,011,557

3430    Interest  Incl Profit On Inves 000     Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0

3390    Miscellaneous State Revenues  000     Revenue $46,500 $46,500 $0 $46,500

3430    Interest  Incl Profit On Inves 000     Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0

3390    Miscellaneous State Revenues  000     Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0

3430    Interest  Incl Profit On Inves 000     Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0

3390    Miscellaneous State Revenues  000     Revenue $568,716 $568,716 $0 $568,716

3430    Interest  Incl Profit On Inves 000     Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0

$44,687,699 $44,903,256 $0 $44,903,256

670     Improvements other than Bldg  $0 $0 $0 $0

680     Remodeling and Renovations    $0 $0 $0 $0

630     Buildings and Fixed Equip     $3,304,878 $3,304,878 $0 $3,304,878

640     Furniture Fixtures & Equipment $0 $0 $0 $0

680     Remodeling and Renovations    $0 $0 $0 $0

9200    Debt Service                  730     Dues and Fees                 $0 $0 $0 $0

630     Buildings and Fixed Equip     $4,864,470 $4,354,568 ($540,000) $3,814,568

690     Computer Software             $150,000 $150,000 $0 $150,000

640     Furniture Fixtures & Equipment $2,545,494 $2,795,494 $0 $2,795,494

670     Improvements other than Bldg  $1,683,489 $1,682,489 ($94,000) $1,588,489

660     Land                          $200,000 $200,000 $0 $200,000

790     Miscellaneous                 $1,145,079 $1,145,079 $0 $1,145,079

650     Motor Vehicles                $0 $287,324 $0 $287,324

390     Other Purchased Services      $0 $0 $0 $0

680     Remodeling and Renovations    $18,290,568 $18,575,470 $610,000 $19,185,470

7700    Central Services              640     Furniture Fixtures & Equipment $0 $0 $0 $0

650     Motor Vehicles                $3,904,020 $3,904,020 $0 $3,904,020

680     Remodeling and Renovations    $0 $0 $0 $0

7900    Operation Of Plant            680     Remodeling and Renovations    $0 $0 $0 $0

720     Interest                      $0 $0 $0 $0

710     Redemption of Principal       $112,320 $112,320 $0 $112,320

920     Transfers to Debt Service Fund $6,222,083 $6,222,083 $0 $6,222,083

910     Transfers to General Fund     $6,000,000 $6,000,000 $0 $6,000,000

630     Buildings and Fixed Equip     $27,077,559 $26,007,504 ($1,080,000) $24,927,504

690     Computer Software             $0 $0 $13,536 $13,535

640     Furniture Fixtures & Equipment $0 $945,056 $1,066,466 $2,011,520

670     Improvements other than Bldg  $0 $0 $0 $0

SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY 
RESOLUTION TO AMEND DISTRICT BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025
         CAPITAL PROJECTS

FUND 3XX
Month Ending  February 28, 2025

Fund Function Description Obj Description Adopted Budget Adj

360     

370     

380     

394     

395     

398     

399     

Total Revenue

340     7400    Facilities Aquisition & Const 

360     7400    Facilities Aquisition & Const 

370     7400    Facilities Aquisition & Const 

7800    Pupil Transportation Services 

9200    Debt Service                  

9700    Transfer Of Funds             

380     7400    Facilities Aquisition & Const 

Page 322 of 366

DRAFT



Beginning Working
Budget Budget

Fund Function Description Obj Description Adopted Budget Adj

610     Library Books                 $0 $0 $0 $0

650     Motor Vehicles                $0 $0 $0 $0

680     Remodeling and Renovations    $0 $25,000 $100,000 $125,000

9700    Transfer Of Funds             920     Transfers to Debt Service Fund $0 $0 $0 $0

7300    School Administration         640     Furniture Fixtures & Equipment $0 $0 $0 $0

620     Audiovisual Materials         $0 $0 $0 $0

630     Buildings and Fixed Equip     $0 $0 $0 $0

690     Computer Software             $8,143 $8,143 $98,496 $106,639

640     Furniture Fixtures & Equipment $0 $0 $0 $0

650     Motor Vehicles                $0 $0 $0 $0

390     Other Purchased Services      $0 $0 $0 $0

680     Remodeling and Renovations    $0 $0 $0 $0

360     Rentals                       $0 $0 $0 $0

7800    Pupil Transportation Services 690     Computer Software             $0 $0 $0 $0

720     Interest                      $0 $0 $0 $0

710     Redemption of Principal       $0 $0 $0 $0

630     Buildings and Fixed Equip     $31,272,049 $31,272,049 $0 $31,272,049

680     Remodeling and Renovations    $0 $0 $0 $0

394     9700    Transfer Of Funds             910     Transfers to General Fund     $0 $1,011,557 $0 $1,011,557

395     7400    Facilities Aquisition & Const 670     Improvements other than Bldg  $149,712 $149,712 $0 $149,712

620     Audiovisual Materials         $0 $0 $0 $0

640     Furniture Fixtures & Equipment $20,724 $20,724 $0 $20,724

610     Library Books                 $17,603 $17,603 $0 $17,603

670     Improvements other than Bldg  $0 $0 $0 $0

790     Miscellaneous                 $10,819 $10,819 $0 $10,819

680     Remodeling and Renovations    $603,707 $603,707 $0 $603,707

$107,582,718 $108,805,599 $174,498 $108,980,095

392     

7400    Facilities Aquisition & Const 

9200    Debt Service                  

393     7400    Facilities Aquisition & Const 

398     7400    Facilities Aquisition & Const 

399     7400    Facilities Aquisition & Const 

Total Expenses

Page 323 of 366

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOL 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND DISTRICT BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

CAPITAL PROJECTS-SALES TAX 

FUND396 

DISCOVERING ENDLESS POSSIBILITIES 

Clay Councy o,�rnct Schools 1s on Eouul 01,po1Cl/n1(} Employer 

Page 324 of 366

DRAFT



Beginning Working
Budget Budget

3410    Taxes                         000     Revenue $19,059,000 $19,059,000 $0 $19,059,000

3430    Interest  Incl Profit On Inves 000     Revenue $300,737 $300,737 $0 $300,737

$19,359,737 $19,359,737 $0 $19,359,737

630     Buildings and Fixed Equip     $388,611 $407,612 $0 $407,612

640     Furniture Fixtures & Equipment $722,555 $695,627 $0 $695,627

670     Improvements other than Bldg  $9,674,882 $9,072,651 $0 $9,072,651

790     Miscellaneous                 $1,074,142 $1,074,142 $0 $1,074,142

680     Remodeling and Renovations    $21,208,356 $21,818,514 $0 $21,818,514

9200    Debt Service                  710     Redemption of Principal       $0 $0 $0 $0

$33,068,546 $33,068,546 $0 $33,068,546

SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY 
RESOLUTION TO AMEND DISTRICT BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025
         CAPITAL PROJECTS

FUND 396
Month Ending  February 28, 2025

Fund Function Description Obj Description Adopted Budget Adj

Total Expenses

396     

Total Revenue

396     7400    Facilities Aquisition & Const 

Page 325 of 366

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOL 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND DISTRICT BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

SPECIAL REVENUE - FOOD SERVICE 

FUND410 

DISCOVERING ENDLESS POSSIBILITIES 

Cloy C0(ln[y Dtstllct Sc/100/s IS on Equal Oppo1 [l/11/1} Employ<?! 

Page 326 of 366

DRAFT



Beginning Budget Adj Working

Budget Budget

3260    000     Revenue $17,249,092 $17,249,092 $0 $17,249,092

3330    000     Revenue $145,000 $145,000 $0 $145,000

3430    000     Revenue $250,000 $250,000 $0 $250,000

3450    000     Revenue $4,956,418 $4,956,418 $0 $4,956,418

3490    000     Revenue $5,000 $5,000 $0 $5,000

$22,605,510 $22,605,510 $0 $22,605,510

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0

200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $7,329,812 $7,329,812 $0 $7,329,812

200     Employee Benefits             $3,249,623 $3,249,623 $0 $3,249,623

300     Purchased Services            $401,284 $401,284 $0 $401,284

400     Energy Services               $175,500 $175,500 $0 $175,500

500     Material and Supplies         $12,943,644 $12,943,644 ($100) $12,943,544

600     Capital Outlay                $412,275 $412,275 $100 $412,375

700     Other                         $275,000 $275,000 $0 $275,000

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0

200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0

200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0

$24,787,139 $24,787,139 $0 $24,787,139Total Expenses

7600    

                                   Central Services              

7700    

                                   Operation Of Plant            

7900    

Total Revenue

                                   Basic FEFP K-12               

5100    

                                   Food Services                 

                                  National School Lunch Act     

                                  Categorical State Sources     

                                  Interest  Incl Profit On Inves

                                  Food Services                 

                                  Misc Local Resources          

Month Ending February 28, 2025

Func Obj Description Adopted 

SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND DISTRICT BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR  2024-2025

SPECIAL REVENUE FOOD SERVICE

FUND 410

Page 327 of 366

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOL 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND DISTRICT BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

SPECIAL REVENUE - OTHER 

FUND42X 

DISCOVERING ENDLESS POSSIBILITIES 

Cloy Counry D1�111cL Schools 1s on Cquol Oppor wn11y Employ<'t 

Page 328 of 366

DRAFT



SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY 
RESOLUTION TO AMEND DISTRICT BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR  2024-2025
SPECIAL REVENUE OTHER

FUND 42X
Month Ending February 28, 2025

3201    Revenue $321,277 $383,336 $0 $383,336

3220    Revenue $407,644 $596,549 $0 $596,549

3226    Revenue $4,318,999 $1,368,169 $0 $1,368,169

3230    Revenue $12,499,330 $10,053,999 $0 $10,053,999

3240    Revenue $7,919,891 $9,893,533 ($277,218) $9,616,315

3241    Revenue $353,442 $316,998 $59,273 $376,271

3242    Revenue $787,092 $554,283 $234,772 $789,055

3290    Revenue $97,167 $179,342 $0 $179,342

3290    Revenue $55,000 $55,000 $0 $55,000

3430    Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $8,044,159 $8,861,621 ($251,125) $8,610,496
200     Employee Benefits             $3,016,552 $3,184,962 ($82,240) $3,102,726
300     Purchased Services            $924,292 $561,007 $8,392 $569,398
400     Energy Services               $0 $0 $0 $0
500     Material and Supplies         $2,584,765 $1,152,456 ($19,705) $1,132,750
600     Capital Outlay                $1,258,525 $1,316,155 $181,918 $1,498,071
700     Other                         $78,536 $94,268 $0 $94,268

100     Salaries                      $1,046,118 $1,050,691 ($11,818) $1,038,873
200     Employee Benefits             $382,443 $383,776 $0 $383,776
300     Purchased Services            $92,977 $91,876 ($20,706) $71,170
500     Material and Supplies         $0 $0 $0 $0
600     Capital Outlay                $17,771 $17,771 $0 $17,771
700     Other                         $1,008 $1,008 $0 $1,008

200     Employee Benefits             $22,429 $22,429 ($3,621) $18,808
300     Purchased Services            $1,500 $1,500 $0 $1,500

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0

Func Obj Adopted Beginning Budget Adj Working
Budget Budget

3201    Vocational Ed

3220    Workforce Investment Act

3226    Eisenhower Math And Science

3230    I.D.E.A.

3240    Title I - Elem & Secondary Edu

3241    Title III

3242    Title IV

3290    Other Federal Thru State

3290    Other Federal Thru State

3430    Interest  Incl Profit On Inves

Total Revenue $26,759,842 $23,401,208 $16,827 $23,418,035

5000    Instruction

6100    Student Personnel Services

6110    Social Work

6120    Guidance Services

Page 329 of 366

DRAFT



200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0
300     Purchased Services            $0 $0 $0 $0
500     Material and Supplies         $0 $0 $0 $0
600     Capital Outlay                $0 $0 $0 $0
700     Other                         $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $89,212 $93,355 $8,650 $102,005
200     Employee Benefits             $20,597 $21,561 $412 $21,973
300     Purchased Services            $81,920 $88,300 $5,086 $93,387
400     Energy Services               $0 $150 $0 $150
500     Material and Supplies         $92,205 $100,522 $11,370 $111,893
600     Capital Outlay                $0 $1,249 ($8) $1,241
700     Other                         $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $0 $132 $0 $132
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $27 $0 $27
500     Material and Supplies         $0 $0 $0 $0
600     Capital Outlay                $0 $4,256 $0 $4,256

100     Salaries                      $1,912,077 $1,924,441 ($32,000) $1,892,441
200     Employee Benefits             $717,739 $713,590 $0 $713,590
300     Purchased Services            $32,762 $31,262 $0 $31,262
500     Material and Supplies         $25,013 $25,085 $0 $25,085
600     Capital Outlay                $7,910 $7,910 $0 $7,910
700     Other                         $0 $4,788 $0 $4,788

100     Salaries                      $924,464 $1,229,508 $29,713 $1,259,221
200     Employee Benefits             $305,936 $339,675 $14,046 $353,721
300     Purchased Services            $2,501,638 $675,906 ($12,182) $663,725
500     Material and Supplies         $1,589,732 $110,004 ($4,314) $105,690
600     Capital Outlay                $1,592 $2,821 $0 $2,821
700     Other                         $16,698 $30,659 ($321) $30,338

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0
300     Purchased Services            $0 $0 $0 $0
600     Capital Outlay                $0 $0 $0 $0

700     Other                         $877,714 $943,795 $0 $943,795

100     Salaries                      $0 $894 $0 $894
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $203 $0 $203
600     Capital Outlay                $0 $3,224 $0 $3,224

600     Capital Outlay                $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $0 $306 $0 $306
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $69 $0 $69

100     Salaries                      $7,000 $7,000 $0 $7,000

6130    Health Services

6150    Parent Involvement

6200    Instructional Media

6300    Inst  & Curric   Dev Services

6400    Inst  Staff Training Services

6500    Instruction Related Technology

7200    General Administration

7300    School Administration

7400    Facilities Aquisition & Const

7600    Food Services

7700    Central Services

Page 330 of 366

DRAFT



200     Employee Benefits             $1,593 $1,593 $0 $1,593
300     Purchased Services            $13,500 $15,550 $0 $15,550

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0
300     Purchased Services            $67,945 $281,407 ($97,991) $183,416
400     Energy Services               $0 $0 $294,045 $294,045

100     Salaries                      $186 $475 $0 $475
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $108 $0 $108
300     Purchased Services            $0 $1,234 ($1,234) $0
500     Material and Supplies         $0 $0 $460 $460
600     Capital Outlay                $1,354 $0 $0 $0
700     Other                         $0 $0 $0 $0

500     Material and Supplies         $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $0 $541 $0 $541
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $123 $0 $123
300     Purchased Services            $0 $0 $0 $0

500     Material and Supplies         $0 $0 $0 $0

7800    Pupil Transportation Services

7900    Operation Of Plant

8100    Maintenance Of Plant

8200    Administrative Technology Svcs

9100    Community Services

Total Expenses $26,759,862 $23,401,243 $16,827 $23,418,073

Page 331 of 366

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOL 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND DISTRICT BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

SPECIAL REVENUE 

FEDERAL CARES ACT FUNDING 

FUND44X 

DISCOVERING ENDLESS POSSIBILITIES 

Cloy Cormry o,�u,ct Schools 1s on Equc,/ Oppo1C()111t} Employer 

Page 332 of 366

DRAFT



Beginning Working
Budget Budget

3271    Revenue $2,215,754 $2,215,754 $0 $2,215,754
$2,215,754 $2,215,754 $0 $2,215,754

100     Salaries                      $443,106 $559,091 $0 $559,091
200     Employee Benefits             $23,255 $82,428 $0 $82,428
300     Purchased Services            $242,164 $194,109 $0 $194,109
500     Material and Supplies         $667,402 $488,245 $0 $488,245
600     Capital Outlay                $181,387 $160,821 $0 $160,821
700     Other                         $2,319 $899 $0 $899

100     Salaries                      $41,525 $46,048 $0 $46,048
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $1,029 $0 $1,029
300     Purchased Services            $1,023 $6,523 $0 $6,523
500     Material and Supplies         $1,111 $1,141 $0 $1,141
600     Capital Outlay                $48,485 $48,485 $0 $48,485
700     Other                         $350 $550 $0 $550

200     Employee Benefits             $22,337 $22,487 $0 $22,487

300     Purchased Services            $3,818 $3,818 $0 $3,818
500     Material and Supplies         $3,963 $3,963 $0 $3,963

100     Salaries                      $338 $0 $0 $0
200     Employee Benefits             $72 $0 $0 $0
300     Purchased Services            $12,525 $50 $0 $50
400     Energy Services               $1,100 $1,100 $0 $1,100
500     Material and Supplies         $18,715 $600 $0 $600
600     Capital Outlay                $3,184 $3,184 $0 $3,184

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0
600     Capital Outlay                $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0
200     Employee Benefits             $794 $869 $0 $869
300     Purchased Services            $409 $1,109 $0 $1,109
500     Material and Supplies         $0 $0 $0 $0
600     Capital Outlay                $0 $0 $0 $0
700     Other                         $0 $29,238 $0 $29,238

6300          Inst  & Curric   Dev Services 

6110          Social Work                   

6130          Health Services               

6150          Parent Involvement            

6190          Guidance Administration       

6200          Instructional Media           

3271          CARES Act ESSER               

Total Revenue
                                
5000          Instruction                   

6100          Student Personnel Services    

Month Ending February 28, 2025
Func Obj Adopted Budget Adj

SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY 
RESOLUTION TO AMEND DISTRICT BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR  2024-2025
SPECIAL REVENUE OTHER

FUND 44X

Page 333 of 366

DRAFT



Beginning Working
Budget Budget

Func Obj Adopted Budget Adj

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0
300     Purchased Services            $5,001 $11,350 $0 $11,350
500     Material and Supplies         $28,353 $1,867 $0 $1,867
700     Other                         $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0
300     Purchased Services            $0 $0 $0 $0
600     Capital Outlay                $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0
300     Purchased Services            $0 $0 $0 $0
700     Other                         $43,712 $37,027 $0 $37,027

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0
600     Capital Outlay                $102,933 $102,933 $0 $102,933

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0
500     Material and Supplies         $0 $0 $0 $0
600     Capital Outlay                $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0
200     Employee Benefits             $5,738 $0 $0 $0
300     Purchased Services            $0 $0 $0 $0
400     Energy Services               $289,116 $365,597 $0 $365,597
700     Other                         $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0
300     Purchased Services            $0 $0 $0 $0
500     Material and Supplies         $1,425 $74 $0 $74
600     Capital Outlay                $0 $0 $0 $0

7800          Pupil Transportation Services 

7900          Operation Of Plant            

8100          Maintenance Of Plant          

7300          School Administration         

7400          Facilities Aquisition & Const 

7500          Fiscal Services               

7600          Food Services                 

7700          Central Services              

6400          Inst  Staff Training Services 

6500          Instruction Related Technology

7100          Board                         

7200          General Administration        

Page 334 of 366

DRAFT



Beginning Working
Budget Budget

Func Obj Adopted Budget Adj

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0

100     Salaries                      $0 $0 $0 $0
200     Employee Benefits             $0 $0 $0 $0
700     Other                         $20,125 $41,125 $0 $41,125

$2,215,785 $2,215,760 $0 $2,215,760Total Expenses

8200          Administrative Technology Svcs

9100          Community Services            

Page 335 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C17 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT MARCH, 2025

Description
The items listed have been surveyed by the Coordinator of Property Control, at the request of the Cost Center Property Manager,
and the recommended disposition is noted. These items are either obsolete, unusable or beyond economical repair. These items
should be removed from active inventory and disposed of in the manner indicated. Deletions are for property items received in
the month of February, 2025.

Gap Analysis
Tangible Personal Property shall be controlled and supervised from acquisition through transfer or disposal. Disposal of property
shall be in accordance with Section 274.05, Florida Statutes. All deletions of items with a value of $1,000.00 or more will be
approved by The School Board of Clay County prior to disposition - School Board Policy Section 5.03C

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Property Records followed State mandate on trackable assets, Chapter 274.05

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Strategy 5.4; Enhance fiscal practices that enable the district to maximize effectiveness and efficiency.

Recommendation
Approve Deletion of Certain Items Report - March, 2025 as submitted

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko,
Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs
(904)-336-6721
susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Provides additional storage space and eliminates the need to account for unusable property. Reduces the dollar value of Tangible
Personal Property.

Review Comments

Attachments

DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT APRIL, 2025.pdf

Page 336 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-of-certain-items-report-april-2025.pdf


Page 337 of 366

DRAFT



Page 338 of 366

DRAFT



Page 339 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C18 - BID Award

Description
Award BID as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
a.  Building Code Inspection and Plan Review Services – County Wide Bid #25-F-251: Contract period is for a three (3) year
period from April 4, 2025 through April 3, 2028 with the option to renew for one (1) additional (3) year contract period.  upon
mutual agreement, in writing. Bid established for the purchase of building code inspection and plan review services.  The
vendors awarded are the lowest, most responsive and responsible qualified bidders meeting specifications.    

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the services, and or products to meet their
needs.

Previous Outcomes
Prior Board approved Bid has expired but it was used successfully during the past terms to provide quality services and products
to the district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board, we expect the contractors and vendors to provide quality services and products at the terms and
conditions listed in the Bid.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5; Strategy 5.4; Enhance fiscal practices that enable the district to maximize effectiveness and efficiency.

Recommendation
Award BID as follows:
a.  Building Code Inspection and Plan Review Services – County Wide Bid #25-F-251

UES Professional Solutions LLC, 5561 Florida Mining Blvd S, Jacksonville, FL 32257 (Primary)-
C.A.P. Government Inc, 343 Almeria Avenue, Coral Gables, FL 33134 (Secondary)-

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
a.  Building Code Inspection and Plan Review Services – County Wide Bid #25-F-251: The total estimated expenditure for the
three (3) year contract is $200,000. Estimated annual spend of $60,000 for 2025-26, $65,000 for 2026-27, and $75,000 for 2027-
28 from General and Capital Revenue.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 340 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C19 - Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. Right-of-Way Easement at Oakleaf Junior High School

Description
The increased electrical demand from the new Oakleaf Junior High School classroom necessiates the installation of a transformer
by Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. on school grounds. An easement will be required to facilitate the transformer's placement and
ongoing maintenance.

Gap Analysis
No action would result in the inability for Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. to provide additional electrical service to the new
classroom addition at Oakleaf Junior High School.

Previous Outcomes
The School Board has approved utility easements in the past.

Expected Outcomes
It is expected the School Board will approve this Right-of-Way Easement.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conductive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve the Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. Right-of-Way Easement.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Easement at Oakleaf Junior High Contract Review.pdf

Page 341 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/easement-at-oakleaf-junior-high-contract-review.pdf


Page 342 of 366

DRAFT



Page 343 of 366

DRAFT



Page 344 of 366

DRAFT



Page 345 of 366

DRAFT



Page 346 of 366

DRAFT



Page 347 of 366

DRAFT



Page 348 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C20 - Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. Right-of-Way Easement at Lake Asbury Junior High School

Description
The increased electrical demand from the new Lake Asbury Junior High School classroom addition necessitates the installation
of a transformer by Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. on school grounds.  An easement will be required to facilitate the
transformer's placement and ongoing maintenance.

Gap Analysis
No action would result in the inability for Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. to provide additional electrical service to the new
classroom addition at Lake Asbury Junior High School.

Previous Outcomes
The School Board has approved utility easements in the past.

Expected Outcomes
It is expected the School Board will approve this Right-of-Way Easement.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conductive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve the Clay Electric Cooperative, Inc. Right-of-Way Easement.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Easement at Lake Asbury Junior High Contract Review.pdf

Page 349 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/easement-at-lake-asbury-junior-high-contract-review_1.pdf


Page 350 of 366

DRAFT



Page 351 of 366

DRAFT



Page 352 of 366

DRAFT



Page 353 of 366

DRAFT



Page 354 of 366

DRAFT



Page 355 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C21 - Substantial and Final Completion of Doctors Inlet Elementary School Security Lighting Repair/Replacement

Description
Establish a substantial completion and final completion date for audit purposes and as required by the State Requirements for
Educational Facilities (SREF) and Florida Statutes. The project, as determined by the project manager and project
architect/project contractor, has reached substantial completion on February 20, 2025 and final completion on February 20, 2025,
in accordance with the project documents.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Substantial and Final Completion.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Certificate of Substantial & Final Completion for DIS Security Lighting Repair Replacement

Page 356 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-substantial-final-completion-for-dis-security-lighting-repair-replacement.pdf


Page 357 of 366

DRAFT



Page 358 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C22 - Prequalification of Contractors

Description
Section 1013.46 of Florida Statutes requires school boards to prequalify contractors prior to their being able to bid on
construction projects for the district.  The rules for prequalification are stipulated in the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF).  The attached list identifies the contractors to be approved this month.  As this is an annual requirement, the
attached list may contain both new contractors and contractors seeking to renew their prequalification status.  Per Florida
Statutes, only those contractors currently prequalified at the time of bidding may bid on a school board construction project.

Gap Analysis
Prequalification of Contractors is an annual requirement.

Previous Outcomes
CCDS complies with contractor prequalification as required by Florida Statutes and SREF (State Requirements for Educational
Facilities).

Expected Outcomes
CCDS will remain in compliance by certifying the contractors recommended for prequalification meet the requirements of
Section 1013.46 FS, the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) and School Board Policy.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve the attached contractor prequalification list.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 4.3.25

Page 359 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-4325.pdf


SBCC PRE-QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS 
 
 
The following contractors are being submitted to the School Board for Contractor Pre-Qualification approval 
having met all requirements of Chapter 1013.46 F. S., as determined by the Pre-Qualification Committee 
consisting of Lance Addison, Clayton Anderson, Bertie Staefe, Chris Deely-Isais and Beth Clark.  The pre-
qualification certification is valid for one year from the end of the month in which Board approval is obtained. 

 
 

COMPANY TRADE CATEGORY BOND LIMIT EXPIRATION DATE 

AEC Electrical Contractors, Inc.  Electrical Contractor $5,000,000.00 April 30, 2026 

Barber & Associates, Inc. General and Roofing 
Contractor 

$15,000,000.00 April 30, 2026 

Garland/DBS, Inc. General Contractor $30,000,000.00 April 30, 2026 

Recovery Roofing, Inc. Roofing Contractor $1,250,000.00 April 30, 2026 

 

Page 360 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C23 - Change Order #2 (Direct Purchasing) for Lakeside Elementary School Kitchen Renovation

Description
Direct purchasing change orders are almost always deductive and are the sole initiative of the owner. These change orders
represent the purchase of materials and/or equipment directly by the School Board in order to save sales tax. The direct purchases
are deducted from the original contract in the form of a change order.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Sales tax savings have been used in the past to fund capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Expected Outcomes
Money saved with sales tax savings will be used for capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #2.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This deduction to the construction contract in the amount of $429,384.98 will not impact the budget. A total tax savings in the
amount of $24,796.64 is realized as a result of this direct purchasing change order.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #2 (Direct Purchasing) for LSE Kitchen Cafeteria Renovation

Page 361 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-2-direct-purchasing-for-lse-kitchen-cafeteria-renovation.pdf


Page 362 of 366

DRAFT



Page 363 of 366

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 3, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C24 - Change Order #3 for Lakeside Elementary School Kitchen Renovation

Description
Change orders are initiated by the contractor, architect/engineer or owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the project
as defined by the plans and specifications. Change orders are reviewed by the architect/engineer and staff prior to submission to
the School Board for approval. This change order is for COP #3, COP #4, COP #5, COP #6, COP #7, and COP #8. See attached
for additional information and backup.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order # 3.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
If approved, this change order will increase the contract amount by $41,619.00. Architect fees will increase by $3,329.52. These
funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #3 for LSE Kitchen Renovation

Page 364 of 366

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-3-for-lse-kitchen-renovation.pdf


Page 365 of 366

DRAFT



Page 366 of 366

DRAFT


